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REPORT OF INVESTIGATION (Case S6811P)
CONCERNING
BRIGADIER GENERAL JOSEPH B. VEILLON
| PREPAREDBY

cOLONEL [
JULY 2011

I. INTRODUCTION

to the
_ ! Air Force
S R A 10 = lee_d improe conduct on the part of
Brig Gen Joseph B. Veillon, Commander of the LAANG and Assistant Adjutant General for Air,
Louisiana National Guard (LANG), J ackson Barracks, New Orleans, Louisiana. -(Ex 1; Ex 3)

The original compléint identified four separate issues, one of which is directly addressed

Specifically, the complainant alleged that Brig-Gen Veillon removed
H and assigned him to non-flying duties as a

him from his position as K. 7 ; _ _
result of protected communications made to individuals in his chain of command (including Brig

Gen Veillon) conceming violations/potential violations of Air Force Instructions (AFIs) related

to the f and assigned personnel
e _ : ] In addition, the com lamt
alleged an additional motive in Brig Gen Veillon’s actions was retribution for h (Brig

Gen (ret) Sam deGeneres’) participation in a State of Louisiana governor-directed steering

. comumittee, which recommiended replacing The Adjutant General, MG Bennett C. Landrenean,

LANG, a reported close friend and relative of Brig Gen Veillon. (Ex 1)

The investigation began on 28 Aug 09 and during initial interviews concerning the above
issue, evidence of potential, additional misconduct by Brig Gen Veillon was identified.
Additionally, one of the witnesses, Col : senaTE
BRI chose to file a complaint alleging B Veillon falsified an-Officer Performance
Report on him for the reporting period of EEETE IS B8 and forged the signature of the rating
official (Brig-Gen (ret) Samuel deGeneres) on that report. (Ex 86) Analysis-of new evidence
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was completed and on 14 Dec 09, followed by SAF/IG direction to investigate ten add1t10nai ‘
issues concerning Brig Gen Veillon, Those issues were as follows:

b&
b7c

Brig Gen Veillon humiliated and retaliated against members of his command to
include a fellow general officer, subordinate wing/group/squadron commanders,
and other unit members who lawfully raised issues, concerns, or objections to his
guidance, or conducted their official duties in a way that Brig Gen Veillon took
personal objection to.

Brig Gen Veillon directed employment of an Active Guard Reserve (AGR)
resource funded by the National Guard Counterdrug Support Program under 32
United States Code, Section 112 (32 U.S8.C. 112), Drug Interdiction and Counter-
drug Activities, as a full-time Public Affairs officer supporting MG Bennett
Landreneau, the Adjutant General, and the Louisiana National Guard’s Joint
Force Headquarters (JFHQ) in violation of ANGI 10-801, National Guard
Counterdrug Support, 29 Aug 08, ,

Brig Gen Veillon threatened to remove Col — from his
position as | RN -5 <! os humiliated him in front of other
members of the LAANG as result of a-protected communication made to MG
Bennett Landreneau, the Adjutant General, concerning Brig Gen Veillon's orders
to violate an AFI regarding an F-15 flyover for Louisiana Army National Guard
members returning-from a deployment to Southwest Asia, :

Bri Gen Veillon falsified an Officer Performance Report on Col [ G
SR o thc rcporiing petiod of NN oxd forged the

signature of the rating official (Brig Gen (ret) Samuel deGeneres) on that report.

Brig Gen Veillon intentionally directed changes to the LAANG’s Drug Abuse -
Testing Program that violated provisions of AFI 44-120, Drug Abuse Testing
Program, 1 Jul 00, and guidance published by the National Guard Bureau (NGB).

Brig Gen Veillon directed subordinate members, in multiple incidents, not to
release casualty reporting information required by AFI 36-3002, Casualty
Services, 25 Jul 05, .

Brig Gen Veillon directed execution of multiple personnel actions in violation of
applicable AFs after being informed those actions would be in v1olat10n of those

AFIs,

Brig Gen Veﬂlon refused to forward an award recommendation for Col -
h to the Adjutant General for approval because Co! |l had talked

additional dissemination (in whole or |
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with a member of the Adjutait General’s Nomination Committee, a committee
appointed by the Governor of Louisiana to assess and make recommendations on
the-continuation of MG Bennett Landreneau as the Adjutant General,

o Brig Gen Veillon directed inclusion of Lt Col ESEESEEH on a list of LAANG
members selected for non-retention by a Selective Retention Review Board and
approved by the Adjutant General in violation of ANGI 36-2606, Selective
Retention of 4ir National Guard Officer and Enlisted Personnel, 28 Feb 97.

Tncluding the complainants, subject matter experts, and witnesses, a total of 44
individuals were interviewed either in person or over the phone, The investigating officer and
legal advisor traveled on two separate occasions to New Orléans, Louistana—once to interview
witnesses (7 - 10 Jan 10) and a sécond time to interview Brig Gen Veillon and an additional

witness (6 - 7 Mar 10),

During the course of the investigation, it appeared Brig Gen Veillon may have committed
acts of misconduct under the UCMJ. Therefore, Brig Gen Veillon was treated as a suspect and
was read his Article 31 rights prior to interviewing him.

Il. SCOPE AND AUTHORITY

The Secretary of the Air Force has sole responsibility for the function of The Inspector

_ General of the Air Force.! When directed by the Secretary of the Air Force or the Chief of Staff

of the Air Force, The Inspector General has the authority to inquire into and report-on the
discipline, efficiency, and econolny of the Air Force and perform any other duties prescribed by
the Secretary or the Chief of Staff.* The Inspector General must cooperate fully with

The Inspector General of the Department of Defense.? Pursuant to Air Force Instruction 90-301, .

Inspector General Complaints Resolution, (15 May 08), paragraph 1.13.4, The Inspector General

~. has oversight authority over all IG investigations conducted at the level of the Secretary of the

Air Force.

Pursuant to AFI 90-301, paragraph 1.13.3.1, the Director, Senior Official Inquiries
Directorate (SAF/IGS), is responsible for performing special investigations directed by the
Secretary, the Chief of Staff, or The Inspector General and all investigations of senior officials.

! Title 10, United States Code, Section 8014,
2 These authorities are outlined in Title 10, United States Code, Section 8020.

3 Title 10, United States Code, Section 8020(d).

3
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AFI 90-301 defines senior official as any active or retired Regular Air Force, Air Force Reserve,
or Air National Guard military officer in grades O-7 (brigadier general) select and above; Air
National Guard Colonels with a Certificate of Eligibility (COE); current or former members of
the Senior Executive Service (SES) or equivalent; and current and former Air Force civilian
Presidential appointees. :

One of several missions of The Inspector General of the Air Force is to maintain a
credible inspector general system by ensuring the existence of responsive complaint
investigations characterized by objectivity, integrity, and impartiality. The Inspector General
ensures the concerns of all complainants and subjects along with the best interests of the Air
Force are addressed through objective fact-finding,

On 28 Auig 09, The Inspector General approved a recommendation that SAF/IGS conduct
an investigation into an allegation of misconduct by Brig Gen Joseph B. Veillon, Assistant
Adjutant General for Air, LANG. (Ex 85) The case was assigned to. Col B o
holds a SAF/IG appointment letter dated 6 Jul 09, and the investigation started on 28 Aug 09.

(Ex 2) On 14 Dec 09, The Inspector General approved a recommendation that SAF/IGS conduct
an investigation into ten additional allegations of misconduct by Brig Gen Veillon. Investigation

‘of these allegations was incorporated into the existing investigation rather than initiating one or

more additional separate investigations.

III. BACKGROUND

Brig Gen J oseph B. Veillon is the Assistant Adjutant General for Air, LANG and has
served in that position since May 2000. Brig Gen Veillon joined the LAANG in May 1991 and
has served at squadron, group, wing, and state leadership levels. In his current position, he
formulates policy pertaining to the administration and training of over 1,500 members of the
LAANG and is responsible for plans and directives assuring uniform application and compliance
throughout all LAANG units. In addition, he serves as a principle advisor to MG Bennett C.
Landreneau, the Adjutant General, LANG. Prior to his current position, Brig Gen Veillon served
as the Commander, 159 FW, NAS-JRB New-Orleans (October 1997 to May 2000.) (Ex 3:1-2)

andan

at the tlme of h1s complamt and

Act1ve Guard Reserve (AGR) resource assig ned to the LAAN G
g the mvesugatwe hase of th.IS case,

Pnor to that, begmmng in Dec 07, he was

: The C-130 program of the
LAANG consists of a single C-130 aircraft and one full-time and one part-time aircrew and is a
unique program within the Air National Guard and only exists in two other states—South
Carolina and Flerida, In his position as Maj was respons1ble for
supervision and leadership of all assigned aircrew and for overall execution of C-130 missions.
(Ex 87; Ex 16:1-5) '

4
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following an interview conducted with him
! : B | stated he had not filed a

complaint previously because he had lost faith'in the Inspector General system as a result of how

he had seen issues handled by the Adjutant General in Louisiana. He stated he did not believe

anything would be done about issues he might raise. £ ' : et e

(Ex 88; Ex 6%:1-2, 7-8; Ex 70:3, 23, 25; Ex 86)

during the early stages of this investigation. Col

During initial interviews supporting this investigation, several themes emerged
warranting mention in the backgrotind of this report as they contributed to the context in which

‘issues were identified (including why issues were not previously brought forward), how

testimony and other evidence was obtained and assessed, and, very importantly, how various’
factors may have interacted to influence the actions and events examined in this investigation.

First, a number of individuals appeared either reluctant to testify or reluctant to provide
open and forthright testimony because of fear that talking with a member of the IG might be held
against them by Brig Gen Veillon and/or MG Landreneau and that their career or the carger of
someone they might name would be affected in some way, to include being fired. Some of these
individuals indicated while they had previously considered filing a complaint about something
they had either witnessed or been subject to, they had not done so out of the same fear. In
addition, several individuals indicated the investigation would have difficulty obtaining truthful
information from certain members within the leadership of the LAANG as either a result of their
close relationship with Brig Gen Veillon or their fear of retribution from Brig Gen Veillon if they
provided negative information about him. ' : :

" Further complicating mattets, the efforts and outcomes of an advisory panel referred to
within this report as the Adjutant General’s Nomination Committee, appointed by Governor of
Iouisiana Bobby Jindal in January 2008, appeared to have created significant turmoil within the

'LANG, to include more senior leadership of the organization. The Adjutant General’s

Nomination Committee was a committee established to assess the state of the LANG and provide
a recommendation on whether to retain the incumbent TAG or to select a different individual to
serve in that position. Several issues examined in this investigation resulted from actions taken

.. against individuals in perceived and/or apparent response to either their agsociation with

members of the panel, the supporf they provided to panel activities, and/or responses they
provided (or were presumed to have provided) to panel member inquiries. It is also important to
note, as previously mentioned, that one of the members of the Committee was Brig Gen (ret)
Samuel deGeneres, [ERIRRIN B in this case and an individual that Brig

3

.Gen Veillon apparenﬂ . a el-own dislike of. (x 89; Ex 90; Ex 91)

A final theme identified early during the investigation was the presence of long-term, .
close relationships between membets of various rariks of the LAANG, the loyalties created by
those relationships, the tendency to place those loyalties above adherence-to overarching Air
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Force core values and directive guidance, and the impact of those relationships on unit morale
and discipline. :

‘More specific information on these themes and how they affected individual issues and
allegations is included in the additional background and analysis sections of related allegations.

It is also important o note that given the amount of time that has passed since the

“occurrence of some of the issues investigated in this report, individual memories of specific -

events varied and, in some cases, individuals that were known by multiple witnesses to have
been present at certain events testified they had no recollection of those events at all.

6
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IV. ALLEGATIONS, ADDITIONAL BACKGROUND, FINDINGS, ANALYSIS AND
CONCLUSIONS ' ' '

ALLEGATION 1. That Brig Gen Joseph B. Veillon failed to exercise personal
leadership and be personally accountable for the Louisiana Air National Guard ethics program,
as required by DoD 5500.7-R, Joint Ethics Regulation, 23 Mar 06, para 1-404(a) and ", by
intimidating and retaliating against members of his command who lawfully disclosed abuse,

" corruption, violations of law or regulation, or conducted official duties that appeared contrary to

his individual interest.

Additional Background. During interviews supporting the investigation of the initial
complaint by Maj [l concerning the C-130 program, a number of current and former
members of the 159 FW and LAANG leadership team (primarily wing, group, and squadron or
squadron-level leaders) were interviewed to better understand the context and dynamics within
the C-130 program both before and after Maj B became the fl in Dec 07.
During the course of these inferviews, these individuals related serious concemns about Brig Gen
Veillon's leadership style and his treatment of subordinate commanders and leaders. They
described an atmosphere of intimidation and retaliation against those that raised issues or
concerns about direction Brig Gen Veillon provided. (Ex 31:3,9, 28; Ex 32:2, 14, 17,27, Ex
9:2-3, 7-9, 22-24: Ex 69:2-3, 7-8, 11, 20-21; Bx 70:14-16, 21-22, 23, 25; Ex 68:6, 10; Ex 50:28-.
29: Ex 51:1-4; Bx 56:13, 27, Bx 38:5, 6, 26; Ex 45:6, 23) '

_ The foliowhﬁg are representative statements from those witnesses about Brig Gen
Veillon's leadership style and interaction with subordinate commanders:

..he's a, a General that rules by, by, by his opinion. Very hard to talk to
* sometimes...he’s not the kind of guy you can convince a different way ... (Ex 31:3)

...he just.didn’t like that we interpret the reg, the reg different than hlm and because of ~
that, [ think he.held it against me...I don’t-think he wanted to deal with somebody else
who would not agree with him. (BEx 31:28) C

LA ybu disagree with him, the phone calls are pretty abrupt and a lot of screaming. Lit’s
- a one way conversation and people were just worried about their. jobs, most of the full-
timers obviously woiry about their jobs. (Ex 32:2)

...ifY disagreed with him, he’d tend fo get loud and would start yelling. (Ex 32:2)

...my take on that is that any time he wanted something done, if, if, you pointed out that

it was not a legal mission in accordance with AFIs, he, that, he would get very, very upset
with that. And that’s when you, you would hit his list, and yow’re pretty much done at
that point. (Ex 9:8) :

“PoD cite the same for any misconduct in violation of standard prior to Mar 2006.

7
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...he does not respect the regulations...one particular example was that during the time I
was wing commander, Geri Veillon wanted to use the aircraft (C-130) to go to the
. National Guard Association Conference, which is specifically by reg not authorized ... I
refused to forward the request of the use of that aircraft of which, you know, I had my ass
chewed on for, for substantial amount of time over that issue, but I held my ground
because I was not willing to put my integrity on the line to send that aircraft forward ..,
so.suffice to say, I was persona non grata there as wing commander, but because I was
managing the wing in a, a, professional way, you know, even though he threatened to fire
me on, you know,-hundred, one hundred occasions, he was unable to fire me ... (Ex 69:3)

..Ican’t describe it any better than to say it’s like a crime family that, you know it’s, it’s
aIl he’s, he’s morally corrupt and you don’t want to be in his way because he will, he
will, the reprisals will be out there hot and heavy, (Ex 69:11) .

...Gen Veillon would keep pulling everything back to the state and the TAG, the sfate
and TAG. And it’s that attitude to me that if you don’t do what we say, the way we want
it done, and when we say to do it, we don’t want any part of you. You know, what we
don’t want is an OSS Commander. and an OG who questions us when we tell you do
something or questions the legality of something. (Ex 68:10)

...you cither found a way to get it done or you were part of the problem and once you
were part of the problem, you were ah...well let’s just say that that would not be
forgotten. (Ex 56:13)

...] have never seen a more dysfunctional organization...the environment in the

Louisiana Air National Guard is not conducive to commanders having the environment

they need to be effective as leaders, because at the end of the day, you are being, you

know, what you can or can’t do is always being second-guessed or, or overridden by one
. individual ... Gen Veillon. (Ex 56: 27)

...it was absolutely incredible...the way that he conducts his business, it’s, its’ basicaily a
fear, operates off of fear and retribution. And he doesn’t go by the regs, he basically
states, and I’ve heard him quote this at somebody with a different flyover, that your job is
to make it happen and take the fall for me even if it’s against the regs. (Ex 49:3-4)

... Veillon rules with an iron fist and if you’re not doing what he wants you to do, you’re
going to feel his wrath. [ think there... there are a lot of individuals both full-time and
traditional who operate under fear of Gen Veillon. (Ex 27:18)

...Veillon has the, has had in my experiences with him, he, if he, if he feels someong is
not loyal or, or questions his authority, whatsoever, then he fakes great exception to that
and, and really, ah really takes great exception to that...he can be a pretty domineering
individual and he can, he doesn’t like it when people do not follow what he wants them to
do or question, again, especially questioning his authority, he gets quite upset about
that...Brod has a propensity to get very, very angry initially and then in most cases calms

8
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© ceremony. (Ex 92":12 0 S e it

down, .. but it is my impression that he seems to carry a grudge against people that have
crossed-him, and, and that is fairly well known I believe. (Ex 45:6)

...When I throw out these people’s names, I'm kind of curious what will happen. Their
careers will be over if ya’ll interview them, put this down, and the general secs their
names on paper...it may take a while, but their careers will shorfly be over. So I'm
hesitant to give out a lot of names, especially with the enlisted force...if their names get
shown, their careers will be over. (Ex 10:5)

In addition to the above statements, individuals provided details on specific incidents that
exemplified Brig Gen Veillon’s leadership style. Two-of those-examples in which-more
extensive information was provided and that were not incorporated in the investigation as
separate allegations follow: : .

Retirement Ceremony for Brig Gen Samuel deGeneres. In Jul 05, a retirement ceremony
had been planned for then Assistant Adjutant General for Air, Brig Gen Samuel deGeneres. Due

to a hurricane threat, the ceremony was cancelled and rescheduled for the Aug 05 Unit Training
Assembly (UTA). For some months prior to this, the 159 FW had been planning and preparing
for an Operational Readiness Exercise (ORE) during the Aug UTA to help prepare for an

_upcoming Operational Readiness Inspection (ORJ). The ORE incorporated deployment to and

operations at a deployed location (Gulfport, Mississippi) and the wing had arranged for other .
units to provide adversary air assets to enhance employment training for the wing’s F-13 aircraft.
Once Brig-Gen deGeneres’ retirement cerémony was rescheduled for the same weekend,
arrangements were made by the wing to provide several hundred personnel for the ceremony
while at the same time executing the ORE. Col [ SEEERERIRNE T e s 08 at the
time, was scheduled to be the | PRI {01 the retirement formation. (Bx 69:6;
Ex 32:1-2; Ex 23:2; and Bx 92:1) '

B, just prior to the Aug UTA, Brig Gen Veillon

According to Col | ) _
15 fly over for Brig Gen de(eneres’ retirement

requested the wing provide a ft

A T e e . t the time and
received the request from Col (ret) RS 1 for the fly over. Upon review of applicable AFIs,
as not permissible and advised his leadership of that

Col [ concluded the fly over w

' assessment. (Ex 51:3)

Col E Bl testified when Brig Gen Veillon heard the wing could not legally
conduct the fly over, “he went crazy” and “one of my thirty minute ass chewings occurred after
that.” (Ex 92:1-2; Ex 69:6) Shortly thereafter, Col B B stated Brig Gen Veillon
conducted a conference call with wing, group, and squadron commanders and directed them to
provide upwards-of 1,000 personnel (roughly two-thirds of the LAANG) for the retirement
ceremony formation, replaced Col e e | and threatened
to have personnel in the formation wear web gear and helmets “because he thought it would be

9
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the initial complaint filed in this case, Brig Gen
- h stated he wanted to testify about an issue involving -

funny.” .As a result, according to Co! R MIIEE, the wing effectively had to cancel the
ORE for the day of the retirement ceremony. (Ex 92:1-2; Ex 69:6) Col R confirmed this
impact: ' :

...we canceled the ORE basically put...we all loaded on buses...the retirement
ceremony was over at Jackson Barracks, which is on the other side [of the state] from
[Gulf Port) Mississippi...We all stood in the heat ... and we canceled the ORE basically
for that day, because by the time we were there, did the retirement ceremony and post
event.,.wWe did not have any opportunity to do the ORE. (Ex 51:3)

As Lt Col R
put it:

That’s a moment that won’t leave my mind. The decision that, when we’re doing an
ORE, that he cancelled the ORE and made the whole unit, you know, go out fo Jackson
Barracks, despite of the ORE, personally just to, to mess with not only deGeneres but
also [Col} and the wing. (Ex 49:5)

Some individuals believed to have evidence concerning either the requested F-15 fly over
or the subsequenit shori-notice change to the retirement ceremony and effective cancellation of
the ORE testified either they did not recall any specifics of the subject events or they did not
recall any issues or concerns raised by Brig Gen Veillon upon learning the F-15 fly over would
not be permissible within the guidelines of the applicable AFI. (Ex 22:11-13; Ex 55:2-3; Ex
23:2) .

Waiver Package, During an interview conducted relative to -

rovided details on events

Brig Gen Veillon. During a subsequent interview, Brig Gen
he’d -

surrounding a lengthy delay by Brig Gen Veillon in
submitted. He stated he was providing this information to illustrate Brig Gen Veillon’s
leadership style and how the general uses his position to intimidate others.

According to Brig Gen L R R A Rt
Following i . he required a waiver to return to worldwide duty

status. He stated he submitted the package in late May 09 and did not hear anything further until
July when he received a phone call from Col  telling
him he needed to discuss the waiver package with Brig Gen Veillom:

.. he says, you know what, you need to talk to Gen Veillon about this waiver package. I
said, well about what. He says I don’t know, I don’t know, he just said you needed to
talk to him about something, So ., I don’t understand what you mean, He said, well he
[Brig Gen Veillon] just wanted to talk to you, because the State Air Surgeon. had
contacted [him) the Director of Staff and said hey we need to, how do I get this to Gen

10
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Veillon, Gen [EEB waiver package, it’s kind of a standard form that you just
sign...and I guess i} [Col EBREE]] talked to Gen Veillon and he said well, just don’t
send it to him, he doesni’t want it right now, he needs fo talk fo Gen . (Ex 46:2)

Brig Gen ! remembered contacting Brig Gen Veillon to ask him if he had any
questions about the package or if there were some issue with processing it and lie recalled Brig
Gen Veillon stating he’d not received the package and to just have it sent to him and he’d take

care of it. (Ex 46:2)

Brig Gen | testified he heard nothing further about the waiver package in the
following months until Sep when he called ESI(0 check on the status of his waiver. He
recalled at that point he was told the package had still not been approved, as Brig Gen Veillon
had not signed it. When he called Brig Gen Veillon to discuss the package, he recalled Brig Gen
Veillon stating he’d not signed it because he was upset with him for talking with Maj Sam
deGeneres without telling him zbout it: (Ex 46:2,5,13-14). '

Now.I don’t know why that got him angry, but apparently it did, that I didn’t share that
mentoring session ... And that’s when he told me, again this is factual, that’s when he
told me on the phone, you didn’t tell me about this, so'T didn’t sign your waiver package.

{Ex 46:5)
When asked why he thought Brig Gen Veillon would delay approving his Lo
package for talking with Maj [ERSEREREY. Brig Gen . replied, “T guess to, to demonstrate

his power. He has a propensity to do that. He likes to demonstrate his power and control.”
(Ex 46:13) :

FINDINGS OF FACT.

e  Current and former squadron-level leaders and above of the LAANG have felt
intimidated by or retaliated against by Brig Gen Veillon for raising issues or concerns
about guidance or direction received from him. (Ex 31:28; Bx 32:2; Ex 9:8; Ex 69:3,11;
Ex 68:10; Ex 56:13; Ex 45:6 ) .

s With little notice, Brig Gen Veillon directed a significant increase in 159 FW personnel
' participation in a retirement ceremony held in Aug 05 for Brig Gen Sam deGeneres,
foroing the wing to cancel the portion of an ORE that had been planned and prepared for
that day. (Ex 92:1-2; Ex 69:6; Ex 51:3; Ex 47:3) ) :

e On 6rabout Sep 09, Brig Gen Veillon approved a e | | package for Brig Gen
- BB which had been forwarded to him in or about May 09. (Ex 46:2,5,13-14)

11
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STANDARDS.

DoD 5500-7'R,' Joint Ethics Regulation, Including Ch 6 of 23 Mar 06 states: (Ex 75:6-7,
10)

SECTION 3. GENERAL POLICY
1.300. DoD Poliey. It is DoD policy that:

f.  Individual conduct, official programs and daily activities within DoD shall be
accomplished lawfully and ethically; '

1-404, The head of each DoD Corﬁponcnt command or organization shail:

a. Exercise personal leadership and take personal responsibility for establishing’
and maintaining the command's or organization's ethics program in coordination with the
command's or organization's Ethics Counselors;

b. Be personally accountable for the command's or organization's ethics program,
-including its ethics and procurement integrity training program, and the command's or
organization's compliance with every requirement of this Regulation,

While DoD 5500-7.R includes specific guidance on a range of DoD-related activities and
programs, it also defines the broader ethical values leaders are to incorporate in decision-making.
These values such as honesty, integrity, loyalty to mission and nation over loyalty to individuals,
fairness, caring, and respect are especially appropriate in the assessment of the evidence obtained
suppotting this allegation. (Ex 75:155-158)

ANALYSIS.

The testimony cited above identified an environment within the leadership of the
LAANG in which individuals are intimidated, treated harshly, and subject to retribution when
performing their dutiés in a way that is contrary to Brig Gen Veillon’s personal interest. This
testimony was obtained from a number of current/and or former leaders of the LAANG to
include wing, group, and squadron commanders, was consistent across time, and assessed as
credible.

When discussing his leadership style and how he interacted with subordinate
commanders, Brig Gen Veillon painted a very different picture. He described himself as a
detail-oriented person, highly interactive with people within the LANG and stated, “I pride
myself on knowing the details of the issues and the ability forme to keep him [Adjutant General]
informed accurately as to what is going on.” (Ex 57:2)

12
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When asked how he énsures his own behavior is in compliance with the Joint Ethics
Regulation and how he instills those guidelines in his subordinates, Brig Veillon stated he
understood his role as a brigadier general and that he provided feedback in a professional way,
stating, “T don’t run around chewing ass and fussing at Captains-and Majors.” (Ex 57 :5) While
Brig Gen Veillon acknowledged some “speed bumps” during his time as the Assistant Adjutant

* General, he reiterated the above point two additional times during discussion of this allegation,

once stgﬁng_, “So I don’t run around threatening people. I'm not in, I wouldn’t be in the job. My
boss wouldn’t tolerate it. I'd have been fired.” (Ex 57:6)

While Brig Gen Veillon admitted to and offered several reasons why he had difficult
relationships with some subordinate leaders, especially with Co! [EREEICRETETEEEE, those
centered on personality conflicts hefelt those individuals had with him; his assessment-that those
individuals just did not like it when he provided direction to them; poor communication;
structural issues within the Guard; or some other reason outside his control. He did not offer
testimony providing any other insight into the environment described by others above nor did he
admit he may have said or done adverse things that would lead people to feel and believe the
way they had testified. Brig Gen Veillon stated his intent would never have been to humiliate or
belittle people in front of their peers. (Ex 57:5,6,7-12; Ex 58:4,9-10,12)

interacts th

The two subordinate leaders Brig Gen Veillon currently and primari
most, Co! [k, current I and Col ETE e
BB provided additional insight into Brig Gen Veillon’s past and current leadership _
interactions. .(Bx 57:3,6) This insight was, however, somewhat guarded and general in nature,
assessed due to proximity of their working relationship with Brig Gen Veillon®

According to Col IR, it was no secret Brig Gen Veillon had estranged relationships
dets prior _ 8 Colll

Tlon

and Col §i LI ecially poor, using the words “vitriol and poison” to qualify it.
(Ex 37:5,7) However, Col stated he had little insight as to the reason those relationships

were adversarial as those wing commanders effectively blocked visibility of Brig Gen Veillon’s

5 That Col [EEg end col [ would be guarded when answeritig certain questions about Brig Gen Veillon was .

~. oxpected. Several individuals had previously testified they felt it would be hard for investigatoss to obtain complets

information from current leadership members of the LAANG because of their fear that what they might say might
impact their careers. As an example, according to Col 5 at one point in the 2006
timeframe, Col B8R became concerned about his relationship with him after Col B had addressed
issues conceming misconduct by Brig Gen Veillon with the Adjutant General and told Col . 1 just
need to back out of this because I need my job,” indicating he feared Brig Gen Veillon might take action against him
with Col EEEEE
SlpviibE e g and currently SRR AL T e
expressed similar concern when talking about a potential witness withiri the current leadership of the LAANG
stating, “You would have to interview him completely off the record, because gverybody is hoping to continue to
make promotions down there and they feel like that if they say anything negatively ... then you could probably get
some truthful answers out of him.” (Ex 9:3) - .
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actions from others. Col JERH did recall Col [ mentioning to him on several occasions
that Brig Gen Veillon had threatened to fire him over issues he had raised (Col R was Bl
during the time Co) [N wos e (Fx 37:1,8-9,11-12)

Col JR stated his own relationship with Brig Gen Veillon was cordial and
professional and that a major factor in the success of the relationship was frequent
communication. (Ex 37:5) He also mentioned, however, that he’d “pondered why it is Gen
Veillon likes me, but he does, he clearly does and it has caused me untold grief in my career
because of the, there’s the perceptions of favoritism.” (Ex 37:7)

Col JEBI 2greed Brig Gen Veillon could be emotional at times, but he also testified
he’d not personally seen Brig Gen Veillon take retribution on someone. (Ex 37:14,18) He also
stated he thought different officers interviewed during the investigation would have very
different views on Brig Gen Veillont’s interactions with them (though he did not offer significant
reasons for this). (Ex 37:9-10) Col [l alluded, however, that certain individuals may not
have been as favorably considered for higher positions within the LAANG because of the
perception those individuals may have provided information to the Adjutant General’s
Nomination Committee, the group described in the background section of this report that was
formed to evaluate the status of the LANG and make recommendations on retention or
replacement of the Adjutant General. (Ex 37:22)

Col [l cescribed his relationship with Brig Gen Veillon in a positive light,
mentioning he’d first worked for the general beginning in 1995 and he likely knew him better
than most other members of the LAANG. (Ex 22:4-5) Similar to other testimony, Col - '
confirmed that Brig Gen Veillon was an emotional individual when it came to someone telling

* him something couldn’t be done. He went on to describe Brig Gen Veillon as an individual that

would exaggerate to make his point and one that wanted people to find a way to make things
happen. Col [l indicated while he’d never seen Brig Gen Veillon give an illegal order, it
was “very hard to go back to him when you haven’t found a legal way to do it.” (Ex -
22:15,17,22) . :

With regard to the example provided in the additional background section on the
retirement ceremony for Brig Gen deGeneres, Brig Gen Veillon stated his intent all along was to
have 1,000 personnel at the retirement ceremony, even after the event was moved to the August
UTA -- the same weekend as the extensive ORE. He placed responsibility for the short-notice
guidance to the wing to significantly increase its participation from the previously planned 200-
300 personne} on poor communiéation between Brig Gen |, the officer in charge of
planning and executing the retirement ceremony, and the 159 FW. He also stated he had no
issue when he learned the flyover by F-15s he’d requested was not authorized by the applicable
AFI, He indicated he did not recall making a statement that he was going to have members of
the formation wear battle gear or perform other unreasonable actions. (Ex 57:10,12)
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Previously cited testimony from Col § & as well as testimony received from
Brig Gen [lagl in 2 follow-up interview indicated, contrary to Brig Gen Veillon’s
recollections,

the general had become very angry when he was informed a flyover by F-135s was

- not permissible within AFI guidelines. Both individuals confirmed-the direction to substantially

increase the number of individuals required for the retirement ceremony came shortly thereafter
and both mentioned additional actions or threat of actions that were viewed as retribution.
Additionally, according to Brig Gen [Zi, he had kept Brig Gen Veillon informed about the
extent of the wing’s ORE involvement and level of participation planned for the retirement
ceremony. He stated there was no lack of communication between the wing and himself as Brig
Gen Veillon suggested. Brig Gen [l also indicated it was his assessment Brig Gen
Veillon’s short-notice guidance to increase the 159 FW's participation at the retirement
ceremony for Brig Gen deGeneres, effectively cancelling the wing’s-ORE for that day, was not a
reasonable action to take, created significant logistical issues, and was not something Brig Gen -

deGeneres expected. (Ex47:1-10) -

With regard to the example provided in the additional background section concerning
Brig Gen Veillon’s alleged intentional delay in processing approval of a R packape
as refribution against Brig Gen B Brig Gen Veillon offered no testimony indicating
whether he’d delayed approval of the package or if he had any issue with Brig Gen ‘
which might have affected his approval of that package. Brig Gen Veillon appeared evasive and
responded in general terms when answering questions concerning this topic. Brig Gen EREEI

. testimony on this issue was detailed and assessed as credible. (Ex 57:5-6)

On the whole, the evidence obtained during the course of the investigation of this

allegation indicates Brig Gen Veillon’s leadership style and decision making/execution is

characterized by intimidation or retaliation against subordinate commanders when they raise
concerns about abuse and/or compliance with formal AF or other guidance, or simply perform
their duties in a way not to Brig Gen Veillon’s liking. Additionally, the evidence reflects a lack
of faimess and respect by Brig Gen Veillon towards those leaders.

Regardless of the reasons and possible validity of those reasons Brig Gen Veillon cited as.
causes of conflict within his relationships with subordinate leaders, it remained Brig Gen
Veillon’s responsibility to conduct those relationships in a respectful and ethical way in
accordance with the Joint Ethics Regulation. Bvidence obtained through interviews with his
subordinate léaders and as cited above indicates he did not do so.

On a positive note for members of the LAANG and especially the members of the 159
FW, testimony from past and present wing commanders and command chiefs indicated Brig Gen
Veillon’s subordinate leaders effectively shiclded the majority of their personnel from
knowledge of Brig Gen Veillon’s actions. -(Ex 37:7-8; Ex 65:3,7; Ex 19:1-3)
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Finally, it is important to note inconsistencies between Brig Gen Veillon’s testimony and
that of the majority of subordinate leaders interviewed were significant and raised serious
concern about the credibility of the general’s overall testimony. -

CONCLUSION.

By a preponderance of evidence, based upon the findings of fact and sworn testimony,
the allegation that Brig Gen Joseph B. Veillon failed to exercise personal leadership and be
personally accountable for the Louisiana Air National Guard ethics program, as required by DoD
5500.7-R, Joint Ethics Regulation, 23 Mar 06, para 1-404(a) and (b), by intimidating and
retaliating against members of his command who lawfully disclosed abuse, corruption, violations
of law or regulation, or conducted official duties that appeared contrary to his individual interest,

was SUBSTANTIATED,
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ALLEGATION 2. That Brig Gen Joseph B, Veillon directed and/or approved ,
employment.of an Active Guard Reserve resource funded by the National Guard Counterdrug
Support Program under 32 United States Code, Section 112 (32 U.S.C. 112), Drug Interdiction
and Counter-drug Activities, as a full-time Public Affairs Officer (PAO) for the Louisiana

_National Guard, in violation of ANGI 10-801, National Guard Counterdrug Support, 29 Aug

08.6

 Additional Background. During the course of interviews with current
leaders within thé 159 FW conducted to gain a better understanding of the i
g and Brig Gen Veillon’s interaction and leadership of that program, Col
[l testified she had
witnessed a nt situa which Brig Gen Veillonhad intentionally directed violation
of AF or other higher-level guidance of instructions. Further analysis of one of those situations
led to the addition of this allegation to the casé. (Ex 38:8) '

d former

fl. Brig Gen Veillon directed assignment of Lt Col B
supporting the LANG’s JFHQ while he was serving on Active

! e apositionfunded
by the National Guard Counterdrug Support Program. She went on to state she had advised Brig
Gen Veillon that Lt Co) NG could not be used in that role while he was on orders funded
by the Counterdrug Support Program because it was a violation of applicable NGB guidance.-
(Ex 39:6-7; Ex 38:8-9) Col § stated Brig Gen Veillon’s response was, “you know, we, we
work for the TAG and that’s the way it’s, it's going to be ....the TAG wants B He said, you
know, salute smartly ... we’re within the regulations.” (Ex 38:9) Col [ERiE# also pointed out a
related issue in assigning Lt Col i B was that the LANG did not have a
corresponding full-time manning position in which Lt Col B could be more
appropriately placed. (Ex 38:9) ) ~ :

According to l =

_ During a subsequent interview with Lt Col [EEEEEEER, Lt Col _conﬁr_rhed he had
previously been the CDC for the LANG and stated he’d been placed on AGR orders for that
position in the summer of 2000. He recalled he’d been assigned as a EEEGIENEE B in Oct 04 as

the 256 Infaniry Brigade was preparing for deployment into Iraq and he’d se in that

-position through the summer of 2007. He also stated he’d highlighted the issue that his existing
. AGR orders were funded by the Counterdrug Support Program and needed to be changed when

he becams the BB, Lt Col SRR recalled once he highlighted the issue he did not later
confitm any changes wete made and therefore did not know if, when, or how the funding shift
was ever made. (Ex 43:1; Ex 93; Ex 94, Ex 95; Ex 96)

5 A copy of the 31 Mar 00 version of ANGI 10-801 which would have been in use at the time of the occurrence of
the events under investigation conceming this allegation was unable to be obtained for reference. However a list of -
changes included in the cited version indicates the paragraph used as the standard for this allegation was not

changed between the two versions of the instruction. As a result, the standard cited is considered applicable.

: 17

Ry eleased (in whole or in part), reproduced, or given

Qe inspector general channels without prior approval
SAF/IG) or designee. :

000019 of 000092



b6
b7¢

. A review of documentation provided by the LANG AGR manager indicated Lt Col
B s assigned as BB beginning 23 May 00 and ending 22 May 06. A subsequent
special order dated 3 Feb 05 reassigned him from the position as [EiRE to a position as Quality
Management Officer. A subsequent amendment to that order dated 17 Feb 05 added the
effective date of the position change to 27 Jan 05, approximately 4 months after he assumed the
full-time duties as PAO. (Ex 94; Ex 95:AL-46, AL-29, AL-35) Lt Col | duty history
obtained from ARPC indicates he served as [Rgl from 23 May 00 to 1 Mar 05 and PAO from 1
Mar 05 to 8 May 06. (Ex 96)

Further confirmation of Lt Col | EEEESER assignment as a Jlll funded by the NGB
Counterdrug Support program was obtained through interviews and emails with LTC
subject matter expert on this allegation, LTC RN stated he was very familiar with the
Counterdrug Support Program in Louisiana as his responsibilities included interaction with the
programs of all 54 states and U.S. territories, including visibility into and contact with the
personnel and operations of those programs. (Ex 4) '

: confirmed, according to documentation maintained by his office, that Lt
Col had previously been assigned.as a ]} for the LANG 4nd that his AGR orders -
had been funded through the Counterdrig Support Program. He indicated while his office had
lost visibility into some historical records due to a technology upgrade, records showed Lt Col
was on orders as JJJJf from 1 Oct 04 to 23 Jan 05 (the period following Lt Col

initial assignment as PAO). LTC [JJJJJll went on to add that NGB guidance. ,
contained in ANGI 10-801, National Guard Counterdrug Support, would not allow for an AGR
resource funded by the Counterdrug Drug Support program to be assigned or serve full-time in

LTC

7 another position such as PAO. (Ex 4; Ex 97) There is no evidence of reimbursement.

FINDINGS OF FACT, .

o Lt Col | wos assigned as BB for the LANG and placed on AGR orders funded
by the Counterdrug Support Program beginning 23 May 00. (Ex 95:AL-46; Ex 4; Ex 97;
Ex 96).
o Lt Col | began serving as full-time PAO in Oct 04 while on AGR orders fanded
by the Counterdrug Support Program. (Ex 43:1; Ex 39:6-7; Ex 38:8-9)
s+ LtCol - was formally reassigned from the position as - effective 27 Jan 03,
(Ex 95:AL-46, AL-29, AL-35; Ex 97) . ’
-« There is no confirmation of actual counter-drug monies being reimbursed to the ANG
Stat Tour prograrm or vice-versa,

STANDARDS,
" ANGI 10-801, National Guard Counterdrug Support, 29 Aug 08, states: (Ex 73:7-8)
18
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™ and Lt Col i§

2-8. Use of Counterdrug Assets for Non-Counterdrug Missions

a. CD-equipped assets, includitig aircraft and Light Armored Vehicles (LLAVSs) that are
funded by 32 USC 112 appropriations are primarily intended for use in CD operations.
On occasion, requests o use CD equipment and personnel for non-CD purposes will be
made. Reimbursement will be JAW applicable regulations. Non-CD use is limited to
situations where action is being taken in response to requests by civil authorities to save
lives, prevent human suffering or mitigate great property damage AND the following
criteria are-present: T

(1) Equipment and/or personnel are needed to search for a lost person(s), where without
this support a high probability exists that the person(s) will not survive inclement weather
or other perilous circumstances/conditions. .

(2) Equipment and/or personnel are needed to searchfor escapees or suspected dangerous.
felons, who, if not quickly apprehended, will likely endanger the welfare of innocent
pérsons. : ,
(3) Bquipment and/or personnel are needed for support of contingency operations,
operations other than war, natural disasters, Military Support to Civil Authorities
(MSCA), and National Special Security Events (NSSEs). :

_ ANALYSIS.

Evidenge cited above indicates Lt-Col g o served as a RO for the LANG
for approximately 4 monthis while on AGR orders-furided by the Counterdrug Support Program,
in violation of the above provisions of ANGI 10-801. In addition, as citéd above, testimony
provided by Col [l indicates Brig Gen Veillon directed the assignment and did so with the
knowledge it would be in violation of the ANGL. There is no-evidence that any of the exceptions
for non-CD use occurred and there is no evidence of the LANG providing reimbursement for the
use of the CD position. ' : '

Brig Gen Veillon testified he did not recall a conversation with anyone concerning the
issue created by assigning Lt Col A as PAO while still on AGR orders funded by the
Counterdrug Support Program. However, based on Col ECHIERER testimony of the specifics of
her convetsation :

Brig Gen Veillon at the time, the assessed credibility of that testimony,

_ BB statements that he’d also identified the issue to leadership, the
preponderance of the evidence indicates this conversation likely ocourred and Brig Gen Veillon
was at a minimum, aware of the issue, complicit with the move, and directed the 159 MSG/CC to
support it. (Ex 59:2-3) Given the amount of time that has passed since this issue arose, it is
possible Brig Gen Veillon just did not recall his conversation with-Col | i and his role in Lt
Col B assignment as PAO. :

* While no evidence was obtained indicating whether or not Brig Gen Veillon subsequently’
addressed any concerns about the assignment with MG Landreneau (the individual Brig Gen -

19

e inspector general channels without prior approval
WSAL/IG) or designee.

000021 of 000092



Veillon stated would have had final apprdval of the move), given his own admission during
questioning concerning this specific allegation that he talks to The Adjutant General “every day
about everything,” it appears likely Brig Gen Veillon would have discussed it with him. (Ex -

59:2-3)

Finally, the preponderance of the evidence does show Brig Gen Veillon directed
employment of an Active Guard Reserve resource funded by the National Guard Counterdrug

Support Program.

CONCLUSION.

By a preponderance of evidence, based upon the findings of fact and sworn testintony,
the allegation that Brig Gen Joseph B. Veillon directed and/or approved employment of an
Active Guard Reserve resource funded by the National Guard Counterdrug Support Program
under 32 United States Code, Section 112 (32 U.S.C. 112), Drug Interdiction and Counter-drug
Activities, as a full-time Public Affairs Officer (PAO) for the Louisiana National Guard, in
violation of ANGI 10-802, National Guard Counterdrug Support, 29 Aug 08, was
SUBSTANTIATED. ‘

hé
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ALLEGATION 3. That Brig Gen Joseph B. Veillon reprised against a subordinate
member, in violation of 10 United States Code, Section 1034 (10 U.S.C. 1034), Military
Whistleblower Protection Act, by threatening to remove him from his position as Commander,
159th Fighter Wing, Louisiana Air National Guard in response to a protected communication.

Additjonal Background. During an interview with Col
conducted in support of orie of the other allegations against Brig Gen Veillon,
B indicated during his time as £ it was common for Brig
Gen Veillon to request and/or direct the wing to'do thingsthat were in viclation of AFIs or othex
formal guidance. Col RN stated he believed Brig Gen Veillon had taken retribution
f occasions for standing his ground and-advising the general of issues
related to his guidance. (Ex69:1-3) Col [ B wenton to provide a-detailed
description of one specific set of events that lead to the determination that further investigation
was required. Following interview of additional witnesses and review of documentation
provided by Col SRR MY, this allegation was added to the initial investigation. The
following information provides a background for the reprisal analysis.

document dated 5 Apr 06 addressed to MG Landreneau, The Adjutant General, Col
BRI | i-\tificd he was at an impasse in his professional relationship with Brig Gen

Veillon highlighted two events he felt had led to this impasse. Both events were situations in

which he asserted Brig Gen Veillon had directed actions in violation of applicable AFIs or other -
guidance and in which adverse action had been taken against him as a result of taking issue with
those actions. Col § B8 als0 highlighted his strong concern with the negative way in
which Brig Gen Veillon had been treating him, stated he wished he didn’t have to write the
document, but felt he could no longer continue being treated the way he was, His own words

summarize this well: (Ex 98:7-8)

Y will say that I have tried to “suck it up” and be a good officer but the situation has gone
beyond my ability to withstand ... I also know that it is not my place to criticize a
General Officer. Iam frying to be as factual as possible with my explanation and not too
emotional, I also know what it means to be & “team player.” I have tried to play the
game over the last three years and keep the Wing as close to the straight and narrow as
possible. But the issues here are no longer about a “team player” but rather an abuse of
‘power, [ refuse to compromise my integrity. Ultimately, I think the health of the
Louisiana Air National Guard is at stake. I apologize that you have to deal with this-.. I
need to break this chain of abuse. (Ex 98:8) '

BRI after MG Landrencau received the document, he set a
to discuss it with him. Prior to that meeting, Col .
estified he was told Brig Gen Veillon was firing him, He stated he was told this by
B the full-time difector of staff at the JFHQ (Brig Gen. Veillon's main conduit with the
ing). (Bx 70:15) When asked about this conversation, Col | indicated he did not
specifically recall it, but did state if Col ERBMERETER] said he told him he was going to be

According to C
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fired, then he did, stating, ... if [ [Col ik ] is saying I said it then I probably
said it, and that means Gen Veillon said it, but I don t recall.” Col |[EEERaH went on to say that he
had strong confidence in Col EEEIRAIISESREEIRE statements and that he had a great deal of
respect for him and considered hlm the best operational commander he’d seen in 31 years. (Ex
22:13, 23) '

Col stated tivo additional individuals were present when he was told he
was going to be fired. (Ex 70:15) Of these individuals, one did not recall overhearing the
conversation but did recall Co! | ESERENEIRBOIN \<ft the office for the meeting with MG

Landreneau expecting to be fired. The otlier did not recall overhearln such a comment in Col
presence, but did state he recalled overhearing Col state that Col
was going to be fired. He testified he overheard-this prior to Col '

meeting with the Adjutant General. (Ex 65:10; Ex 19:3)

* When he arrived at MG Landreneau’s office, Col [N stated Brig Gen Veillon
was also there and had a copy of the document he’d sent to MG Landreneau. (Ex 69:22)
Testimony provided by Col confirmed Brig Gen Veillon had a copy of the document
prior to the meeting and was present at the meeting with MG Landreneau. (Ex 22:22-23)

CHRONOLOGY.

authored a document detailing Brig Gen Veillon’s ast
treatment of him and including examples of two sets of events in which he
asserted Brig Gen Veillon provided guidance in violation of Air Force or

' other guidance. [Protected Communication]
Apr 06 Col forwarded above document to MG Landreneau, The
Adjutant General, LANG.

Apr 06 Brig Gen Veillon obtained copy of above document from MG Landreneau.
Apr 06 MG Landreneau arranged a meeting between himself, Col

and Brig Gen Veillon to discuss the document and the sﬁuatzon within the
LAANG.

Apr06 | Col - was informed Brig Gen Veillon was firing him as a
result of sending the subject document to MG Landreneau [Adverse

Personnel Action]

Apr 06 Meceting between MG Landreneau, Brlg Gen Veillon, and Col | ]
Apr 06 Col remained in position as 159 FW/CC.
Note: While witnesses interviewed did not recall specific dates the above
events occurred, the events and the order of events was consistent among
those witnesses. (As previously cited in the Additional Background
section.)
22
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FINDINGS OF FACT.

e Onor about 6 Apr 06, Col Ll i | authored a document detailing Brig Gen
Veillon’s.past treatment of him and outlining two specific sets of events in which he
asserted Brig Gen Veillon provided direction in violation of Air Force or other guidance,
(Ex 98.7-8) e :

o ColfE 8 sent the above document to MG Landreneau. (Ex 69:22; Ex 59:8)

e MG Landreneau arranged for and held 4 meeting between himself, Brig Gen Veillon, and
Col B | to discuss the contents of the document and the situation within the
LAANG. (Bx 69:22; Ex 65:10; Ex 59:8) '

h6
bh7c

o Brig Gen Veillon received a copy of the subject document prior to the meeting. (Ex
69:22;Ex 59:8) -

o Col | I was told Brig Gen Veillon was firing him as a result of the

document he had sent MG Landreneau. (Bx.70:15; Ex 22:13,23; Ex 65:10; Ex 19:3)
o Brig Gen Veillon admitted he may have told another individual he was going fo fire Col
B s o result of the subject document. (Ex 59:9)

STANDARDS.

Reprisals against military members for making protected disclosures are prohibited under

" 10 U.S.C. 1034 and as further detailed in Department of Défense Directive 7050.06, Military

Whistleblower Protection. AFI90-301, Inspector General Complaints Resolution, provides
standards and criteria to evaluate allegations of reprisal.

According to AFI 90-301, Para 5.3.1.1, Whistleblower Protection Against Reprisal Under

Title 10, United States Code, Section 1034-(10 USC 1034) “no person may take (or threaten to
take) an unfavorable personnel action; or withhold (or threaten to withhold) a favorable
personnel action, as a reprisal against a member of the armed forces for making or preparing to

make a protected communication.” (Ex: 72

AFI90-301 (both the Feb 05 and May 08 Versions) further instructs‘Inspector Generals to
answer the following four questions (the “Acid Test”) when analyzing a reprisal complaint: (Ex

-72)

1. Did the member make or prepare a communication-protected by statute?

A protected communication includes any one in which “a member of the Armed Forces
communicates information that the member reasonably believes evidences a violation of
law or regulation, including sexual harassment or unlawful discrimination,

7 The 8 Feb 05 version of AF1 90-301 is referenced, as it was the active version at the time the adverse personnel
action relevant fo this allegation ocourred. (The 15 May 08 version is included in the book)
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mismanagement, a gross waste of funds or other resources, an abuse of authority, or a
substantial and specific danger to public health or safety” when such commumcatlon is
made to an appropriate andlvndual (Bx 72)

AFI 90-301 further defines who may receive a lawful protected communication [list
limited to those applicable to this analysis}:

1. Membeér of Congress or an inspector general or a mémber of an inspector general’s
investigative staff,

2. The following when the member reasonably believes he or she has been the victim of,
or has evidence of a violation of law or regulation, including laws or regulations
prohibiting sexual harassment or unlawful discrimination, gross mismanagement, a gross
waste of funds, an abuse of authiority, or a substantial and speczﬁc danger to public health
or safety

a. Personnel ass:gned to DoD audit, inspection, investigation, or law enforcement
organizations; military equal opportunity; and family advocacy.

b. Any person in the chain of command [as defined in Attachment I of the AFI].' (Ex 72).

2. Was an unfavorable personnel action faken or threatened, or was a favorable
action withheld or threatened to be withheld following the protected
communication? .

A personnel action is “Any action taken on a member of the armed forces that affects or
has the potential to affect (for example a threat) that military member’s current position
or career.” Such actions include (but are not limited to) a demotion; disciplinary or other
corrective action; transfer or reassignment; performance evaluation; decision on pay,
benefits, awards, or training; referral for mental health evaluation under DoDD 6490.1,

Mental Health Evaluations of Members of the Armed Forces, and/or any other significant
change in duties or responsibilities inconsistent with the military member’s rank.

3. Did the official(s) responsible for taking, withholding, or threatening the
personnel action know about the protected communication?

A responsible management official (RMO) is generally anyone who influences,
recommends, approves, reviews, or indorses actions taken or threatened against the
complainant. (Ex 72) In order to answer Question 3 affitmatively, it must-be shown that
the responsible official knew, suspected, believed, or heard rumors about the
complainant’s protected communication when the official decided to take unfavorable
personnel action.

4. Does the preponderance of the evidence establish that the personnel action would
have been taken, withheld, or threatened if the protected communication had not

been made?
_ 24
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- that’s not one of those fuzzy mem
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In deteriining whether a personnel action would have been taken, withheld or threatened
in the absence of a protected communication, five additional factors should be
considered: (1) reason; (2) reasomableness; (3) consistency; (4) motive, and.(5)
procedural correctness of the action. (Ex 72)

~ ANALYSIS. The answefs to the acid test for reprisal follow:

1. Did the'.memlier make or prepare 2 communication ,proteéted by statute? Yes

As previously cited, Col [ , on or about 5 Apr 06, prepared a docurnent

* and transmitted it to MG Landreneau thatdescrled Brig Gen Veillon’s past treatment of him

and also outlined two sets of events in which he alleged misconduct by Brig Gen Veillon, to

include violation of AFT or other gmdance A copy of this document was provided for the

investig atlon by Btig Gen Veillon.and review of that document confirmed it described events

B believed to be violation of Air Force or other u1dance In addition, Col
tes’uﬁed and Brxg Gen Veillon confumedthat Coi S | transmitted

the document to MG Landréeneau, an individual in Col 8 S o cham of command. As

- aresult, the document met criteria cited above and was confmned aprotected communication.

2. Was an unfavorable personnel action taken or threatened, ox was a favorable
action withheld or threatened to be withheld following the protected communication? . Yes.

As cited above, Col [ERBRERMIE tostified he was toid by Col [ that Brig Gen
Veillon was going to fire hun for send' 1¢ the subject document to MG Landrenean, During a
follow up interview, Col EEERINES P reiterated the strength of that recollection stating, *..

mine as ‘you canimagine, you know, that 'm being
told that I'm going to be fired, » (Ex 71 ‘7) ' :

As previously cited, while Col - did not cally recall the above conversation,
he emphasized duting his testimony that if Col i 8 ¢ B said he fold him Brig Gen
Veillon was fixing him, then he did and Brig Gen Veillon chd say it. Of the other two individuals
Col Ei d asserted were party to the conversation, while neither recalled the specific
convcrsatlon, one mdmdual testlﬁed hearmg Col say that Brig Gen Veillon had said he

™ was going to-fire Col iR

document when he

Brig Gen Veﬂlon testified he first learned of Co
sent it to him.

received a copy of it from MG Landreneau shortly after Col
While he stated he had no knowledge or memory of telling Co g directly he was
going to fire him for sendmg the document to the Adjutant General, he did recall discussing the
document with Brig Gen KR RRER] prior to a subsequent megting about it with MG Landreneau.

(Ex 59:8) While Brig Gen Velﬂon testified he did not recall the Speclﬁcs of that discussion, he
stated it was possible he could have told Brig Gen [{aER he was going to fire Col
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- Gen Veillon’s interaction with other subordinate leaders detalled 1n legatlon 1, the -

b6,
b7¢c

| have him fired. (Ex 59:9) He addedhe had no memory of telling anyone else he
was gomg to take adverse action against Col R | (Ex 59:14)

Given the strength of Col — recollection, the support given to that
recollection by Co! |, the recollection of a third mdmdual thatCol B vas aware of
statements made by Brig Gen Veillon about firing Co! iR & and the recount of Brig -

preponderance of evidence indicates Brig Gen Veillon threatened to fire Col N g for
sending a protected communication to MG Landreneau and that Col [ communicated that

to Col

It is important to note that during the interview with Brig Gen Veillon on this topic it was
apparent he was angry about the content of the document and viewed it a$ a personal attack
against him. [t is also important to note Brig Gen Veillon indicated he was not aware emails
were subject to the whistleblower protection act and that making a comment to someone about
fiting or wanting to fire an individual for making such a communication could be considered
threat of an adverse personnel action, (Ex 59:14-15)

3. Did the official(s) responsible for taking, withholding, or threateﬁing the
personnel action know about the protected communication? Yes .

As Assistant Adjutant General for Air, LANG, Brig Gen Veillon meets the criteria as an
RMO as cited above as he is in a position which, influences, recommends, approves, reviews, or .
indorse dctions taken against individuals within the LAANG.

As previously cited, Brig Gen Veillon testified he received a copy of the subject

* document from MG Landreneau shortly after Co! | EEBBBSEEER sc1t it to him. As concluded

above, evidende obtained indicates Brig Gen Veillon threatened to fire Col
following his receipt of a copy of that document.

4. Does the evidence establish that the personnel action would have been taken,
withheld, or threatened if the protected communication had not been made? No

In his own testimony, Brig Gen Velllon stated had it not been for the subject document
(protected communication), he would not have had a discussion with Brig Gen Soileau in which

" he may have stated he was going to fire Col , and would not have told anyone
else he was going to fire Col , recomumend he be fired, or threaten the same

(regardiess of whether he recalled it or not). Brig Gen Veillon testified to his reaction at reading
the subject document, “I was angry that, that this, this e-mail was sent to MG Landreneau by a,
by the ng Commander, a Colonel I was angry about it. I didn’t like it. Nobody would.” (Ex
59:14) : .
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-reasonableness, consistency, motive, and procedural correctness of the action or threatened
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No other evidence was obtained, or presented that indicated Co
have been fired or threatened to be fired at that time.

Normally, analysis of Question 4 of the reprisal test inciudes a review of the reason,

iven Brig Gen Veillon’s admission that had it not been for the document Col
l sent to MG Landreneau there would have beén no reason for him to fire Col
recommend he be fired, or threaten to do so at that time, it was agsessed there was

stification to further review those items.

CONCLUSION.

By a preponderance of evidence, based upon the findings of fact and sworn testimony,
the allegation that Brig Gen Joseph B, Veillon reprised against a subordinate member, in
violation of 10 United States Code, Section 1034 (10 U.S.C. 1034), Military Whistleblower
Protection Act, by threatening to remove him from his position as Commander, 159th Fighter
Wing, Louisiana Air National Guard in response to aprotected communication, was
SUBSTANTIATED. .
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- the additional background section of Allegation 3, Col |t
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ALLEGATION 4, That Brig Gen Joseph B. Veillon made false official statements on

~ an AF. Form 707A, Field Grade Officer Performance Report, for the complainant’s reporting

period of Dec 04 to Aug 05, when he falsified both the contents of and signature of the rating
official on that report, in violation of Louisiana Revised Statutes, Title-29, section 207, False
Official Statements

Additional Background. During the same interview w:th Col Rl cited in
s Provided details about a
situation that occurred in which he learned Brig Gen Veillon had falsified an officer performance
report (AF Form 707A) on him and “forged” the signature of the rating official on that report,
Col_h stated this occurred in the Nov — Dec 06 timeframe as he was preparing to
relinquish command of the 159 FW and retire from the LAANG.

‘According to Col — during his initial testimony, as he prepared to retire he
noticed a performance report for the period endmg in Aug 05 had not been completed by his
rater for that period, Brig Gen (ret) deGeneres.” He stated he informed Brig Gen Veillon of this

-and provided draft bullets for the report as requested. When he received a copy of the finalized

report he found significant accomplishments he’d identified had not been included in Block VI.

- The Rater Overall Assessment inchuded a number of blank lines, and the signature 1n the rater’s

block did not look like that of Brig Gen (ret) deGeneres, (Ex 69:24)

Co! EEENEENN s:-:<d he contacted Brig Gen (ret) deGeneres concerning the report
and -was told by the general that he did not write nor sign the report. Col i
indicated he next contacted MG Landreneau and informed him of what he believed had occurred.
According to Col || SR, MG Landreneau told him he would have the existing report
pulled from his records and he would ensure the situation was fixed. (Ex 69:24)

Following the above testimony of Col | EEENEEEEIEREE, SAF/IGS obtained a copy of the
Colonel’s official records from the Air Reserve Personnel Center (ARPC) and determined no
teport for the period ending in Aug 05 was a part of those records. (Ex 99) Col [
was informed of this finding and he subsequently filed an' AF IMT 102, Inspector General
Personal and Fraud, Waste & Abuse Complaint Registration, on 15 Nov 09, (Ex 86) In his
complaint, Col — asserted Brig Gen Veillon had submitted a fraudulent
performance report on him for the period ending Aug 05 and had “forged” Brig Gen (ret)

# Initially, this allegation included an allegation of forgery. However, upon final review the 10 determined that an
element of a forgery, to wit: the intent to defraud (financial gain achieved) could not be legally met under the facts
uncovered during the mvestlgatwn The complainant may have perceived the subject’s false signature of another’s
on his OPR as a “forgery™ but in fact, and in law in this case it is a false official statement.

? Note: Brig Gen (ret) deGeneres retired in Aug 05 and Hurricane Katrina struck New Orleans that same month,
destroying the LAANG headquarters facility and a broad range of records and in process administrative actions,
including Col d performance report. Completion of the report was delayed as a result of the
LAANG's high optempo in the post Katrina timeframe and the complexities of trying to deterinine what records had
been destroyed.
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deGeneres’ name to that report. He provided additional éupporting evidence along with his
complaint and identified a number of witnesses to support his assertions. (Ex 86; Ex 92)

When asked why he had not previously filed a complaint concerning the performance
report or any of the other incidents of misconduct he’d described, Col ] stated
he'd Jost faith in the Inspector General system as a result of seeing MG Landreneau take
minimal, if any, corrective action against senior officers for confirmed misconduct. As Col
B oo it, T almost felt like what’s the sense of making an 1G complaint because I
t feel it would be effective whatsoever.” (Ex 69:12) :

didn’
FINDINGS OF FACT.

e Brig Gen Veillon drafted and completed an AF Form 707A, Field Grade Oficer
Performance Report, on Col  for the period of Dec 04 to Aug 05 and
knowingly falsified both the contents of and the signature of the rating official Brig Gen

' (ret) deGeneres on that report with the intent to deceive others, (Ex 69:24; Ex 86; Ex
70:2-5; Ex 29:7-11; Ex 60:4-6; Ex 15:1-2; Ex 100:2; and Ex 11:10-11)

" STANDARDS.

The Louisiana Code Of Military Justice states: (Ex 76)

RS 29:207

§207. Article 107. False official statements - .

Any person subject fo this -code who, with intent to deceive, signs any false record,
return, regulation, order, ot other official document, knowing it to be false, or makes any
other false official statement knowing it to be false, shall be punished as a court-martial

b6 may direct. Acts 1974, No. 621, §1.
‘b7c

ANALYSIS.

During testimony,cbnceming this allegation, Brig Gen Veillon admitted he drafted and
completed a performance report for Col [ i for the period of Dec 04 to Aug 05 and

A signed Brig Gen (ref) deGeneres’ name to that " actions in violation of the provisions of
Article 107, (Ex 60:4-6) .

He went on to add his reason for doing so was to ensure Col L
complete record prior to his retirement from the Louisiana National-Guard. He indicated that as
B rctirement drew near, he had asked if all performance reports for Col
& 1 had been completed and was told that xeports for two reporting periods were
outstanding, one for which he (Brig Gen Veillon) was the rating official and a second for which
. Brig Gen (ret) deGeneres was the rating official. Brig Gen Veillon stated he asked his staff to
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contact Brig Gen (ref) deGeneres and ask him to complete the report. His understanding was
that Brig Gen (ret) deGeneres agreed to do so.and also commerited he did not engage Brig Gen
(ret) deGeneres directly on it. (Ex 60:4- 6)

Brig Gen Veillon testified, as the time of Col || 1ctirsment ceremony
drew near, his staff informed him they had not received a report from Brig Gen (ret) deGeneres
and, at that point, he completed the report and signed Brig Gen (ret) deGeneres’s name to it '
Brig Gen Veillon further testified his intentions were good and that he believed the report he
drafted and signed was a good one. Commdental thh his testimony, Brig Gen Veillon provided
a copy of a performance report for Col |EEMIBENIRIEN for the timeframe in question and stated
that to the best of his knowledge the product prov1ded to SAF/IGS was a copy of the one he had
signed. A copy of that report is located at Exhibit 101 and it should be noted that there are no

signatures on that copy. (Ex 60:4-6)

Brig Gen Veillon went on to add that at Col || REEEMEENE r<tirement ceremony he
informed Brig Gen (ret) deGeneres of his actions and that Brig Gen (ret) deGeneres told him he
wished he had not done so and agreed he would complete the report. Brig Gen Veillon testified
that following the ceremony he informed his staff to remove the subject performance report from
Col IR :<cord. To his knowledge that was done and the report was never sent to
ARPC. Brig Gen Veillon also indicated he did not believe the report-was ever completed and
stated, “I knew Sam [deGeneres} wouldn’t do it.” (Ex 60:5)

While Brig Gen Veillon’s recollection and testimony would appear to provide mitigating
circumstances for his admitted actions, his testimony and provided supportmg documentation is
not consistent with other evidence obtained.

Accordmgto Capt - R
it was Col that initiated a push to have his performance reports completed. She
recalled asking Col for draft bullet statements on his accomplishments and
preparing a package from which Brig Gen Veillon completed the report. Capt [JIE testified that
Brig Gen Veillon signed Brig Gen (ref) deGeneres’ name to the report and she then forwarded a
copy to ARPC and placed another in Col ersonnel record at the Military
Personnel Flight (MPF). It was her understanding that Col obtained a copy
from the MPF and subsequently addressed his concerns about it with the Adjutant General. She
stated the performance report was subsequently rewritten and she retrxeved the copy sent to

ARPC and then shredded it. (Ex 29:6-8)

Capt - testimony is consistent with that of Col [N citcd in the

additional background section, as well as that of Brig Gen (ret) deGeneres obtained in a follow-
up interview. According to Brig Gen (ret) deGeneres, Col |5 <2!lcd hiin one day
late in 2006 to ask him if he’d drafted and signed a performance report for him for the period

ending in Aug 05. Brig Gen (ret) deGeneres stated after Col IR c oscribed the
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. Brig Gen Veillon to Brig Gen (ref) deGeneres as dr

report he’d been given a copy of he became concerned and contacted Brig Gen Veillon to ask

about the report. (Ex 14)

Brig Gen (ret) deGeneres recalled Brig Gen Veillon telling him he’d done him afavor -
and that Brig Gen Veillon subsequently faxed him a copy of a draft performance report for his
final review and signature. - (Ex 100:2-4) Brig Gen (ret) deGeneres stated after receiving the

-document he quickly identified that statements in Block VI, Rater Overall Assessment (his

Il performance for the period, stating the

block), did not accurately reflect Col jig
He also recalled a number of lines were left

report was “totally inadequate of his perance.
blank, (Ex 14; Ex 100:2-4) )

Brig Gen (tef) deGeneres testified he then contacted the. 159 FW MPF and requested

B ocont performance reports from his pérsonnel record, He
recalled he was subsequently faxed a copy of several finalized reports, one of which was for the
period ending in Aug 05. (Ex 100:8-11)"" (Ex 14) -

Brig Gen (ret) deGeneres recalled after receiving and reviewing the above faxed
performance reports that he interacted with an individual at JFHQ (he did not recall specifically
who) to revise the report, He added, however, that multiple revised drafts sent to him for review
and signature did not include certain statements he provided for inclusion and eventually he
advised the individual he would not sign the report unless those statements were added. Brig
Gen (ret) deGeneres stated that shortly after the above interaction he received no further contact
from the individual at JFHQ concerning Col [EEETSEINEENER OPR. (Ex 14; Bx 100:5-6,11-19)

Comparison of the fax received by Brig Gen (ret) deGeneres from Brig Gen Veillon with
the fax Brig Gen (ref) deGeneres received from the MPF indicates the document Brig Gen
Veillon faxed to Brig Gen (ret) deGeneres was identical to the signed document that had been
placed in Col F] BRI corsonnel record with the exception that the performance
feedback date, date of rater’s signature, and raters signature (reading “Samuel deGeneres”) had
been “whited out” on the draft document sent by Brig Gen Veillon to Brig Gen (ret) deGeneres.

Remnants of those items are still visible on the document.

Assessment of the above documents and related testimony indicates the document sent by
aft for his final review and signature was a
which had already been completed,

B official records. It is further
e he sent the fax to Brig Gen (ret) .

copy of a performance report for Col
signed, and processed for inclusion into Col
assessed, Brig Gen Veillon was aware of this at the
deGeneres and intentionally tried to deceive him, -

9 Review of copies of the two faxes cited above indicates a clear and convincing probability they are copies of
actual documents sent at the time attested to and have not been subsequently modified or altered. In addition, they
are consistent with testimony provided by others who'd seen copies of the finalized, signed report at the time. {Bx

11:10; Bx 49:4) As a result, these do¢uments were assessed as factual evidence.
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' deceiving others by entering this report of performance into Col
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It is important to note the testimonies of Capt [ Co| R
(ret) deGeneres were consistent and supportive of each other and were assessed as credible.
Those testimonies were further corroborated by the supporting documentat;on provided by Brlg

Gen (ret) deGeneres

Furthermore, the copy of the draft performance report provided by Brig Gen Veillon to
SAF/IGS and attested to the best of his knowledge to be a copy of the report he’d signed, wasa

ificantly improved version of the report that had been finalized, signed, placed in Col
“ local personnel records, and forwarded to ARPC. It is possible but unclear

whether Brig Gen Veillon intentionally attempted to deceive SAF/IGS personnel in the
submission of that document.

A final assessment of testimony of individuals interviewed in support of this allegation
along with a detailed review of supporting documentation indicates Brig Gen Veillon not only
intentionally falsified a performance report for Col for the period ending in Aug
05 and falsely signed Brig Gen (ret) deGeneres’ name on the report, but did so with the intent of
official personnel
records that, in a significant way, did not reflect actual performance for the period involved. As
a result, it is reasonable to consider Brig Gen Veillon’s actions concerning Col
performance report as an unjustified adverse personnel action against Col

CONCLUSION.

By a preponderance of evidence, based upon the findings of fact and sworn testimony, -
the allegation that Brig Gen Joseph B. Veillon made false official statements on an AF Form
707 A, Field Grade Officer Performance Report for the complainant’s reporting period of Dec 04
to Aug 05 when he falsified both the contents of and signature of the rating official on that
report, in violation of Louisiana Revised Statutes, Title 29, sectlon 207, False Official Statement

was SUBSTANT. IATED
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during the time in question, Capt i
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ALLEGATION 5. That Brig Gen Joseph B. Veillon directed subordinate members to
modify Louisiana Air National Guard Drug Abuse Testing Program procedures, in violation of -

'AFI 44-120, Drug Abuse Testing Program, 1 Jul 00, and Natlonai Guard Drug Testing Policy.

(Ex 77; Bx 78)

Additional Background. During interviews supporting investigation of other allegations
against Bng Gen Veillon, several witnesses alluded to mxsconduct by Bng ‘Gen Veillon .
concerning the LANG Drug Abuse Testing Prog on was - sought from and
obtained from the individual servmg as the | for

stated he had served as the T =

| Dumng an 1ntemew with SAF/IGS, Capt [0
_ ] from approximatety May 03 until Dec 08, a responsibility given to him

. whﬂe assxgnedas I-tune personnel officer-and later labor relations specialist for the LANG.

He indicated his respon31b111txes in that. posmon were to ensure drug testing for both the Army
and Air National Guard was conducted in accordance with NGB guidelines and standards, Capt
L) testified for much of his time in the drug abuse testing program he had difficulty gaining
support from the leadership of the LAANG to test adequate numbers of personnel to meet NGB
required guidelines and was also directed to violate AF guidance concerning drug abuse testing.

(Ex 27:2-5) -

One specific situation Capt - described began when he emailed Brig Gen Veillon
about initiating drug testing of personnel assigned to the headquarters of the LAANG. He stated
at that point “all hell broke loose” and Brig Gen Veillon emailed him back telling him he could
not test headquarters persofinel and that he needed to talk with him about the drug testing ,
program. Capt [ testified that in a meeting with Brig Gen Veillon shortly after the above
email sequence, Brig Gen Veillon directed him to modify the observer procedures on urine
spemmen collection and made notes on a copy of the related AFI and signed it with the intent of
waiving those procedures. Capt - descnbed thls interaction as follows:

I walk into Gen Veillon’s office and he says, I need you 1o talk to me about drug testing.
I said sit, what do you need to know. He said tell me what it is. So I starfed talking to
him about-drug testing. T-didn’t understand, because I'knew he knew about drug-testing,
but thien he says well tell me about ... his exact words was tell me about observers. Isaid
sit, what do you want to know? He said what does the reg, what does it say about
observers? I said well sit, AFI 44-120 states that observers should be in a posmon to
~ watch to’... observers should be in position to pbserve urine leaving the airman’s body
and entermg into the speécimen ‘bottle. He then told me that’s bullshit. That’s ‘wrong. I
said sir, you know, 1 can show you the reg. He said well show it to me. Okay, I go get
the reg. 1 had one, I-called one of sy guys up. They gave me, they faxed me a copy of
the reg. -1 showed it to him. He then says nope, we're-not doing that and then he signs off
on it. He says we’re not doing that ... He said observers, it should just state, observers
_ should be in a position to observe. I then say sir, you know, I just want you to understand
the position 'm in. You’re telling me to do something that’s against the reg. So he signs
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his name to it ... he signed his initials saying that’s void, we’re not doing that. I said
roger that. So then he tells me there’s going to be one observer for every three people,
-every three airmen. I said sir, the reg states that it should bé one obsetver per one, it’s a
one to one ratio, one observer for every one airman. He says we’re not doing that, He
said you can do three, three for one, I said well sir, I said there are mechanisms that can
be bought now are, are geared to beat drug tests, specifically urinalysis. He said an
observer should be in a position to see that. Well, I was a Lieutenant at the time, sir, and
General says one thing, a Lieutenant, what can I do? 1, I, T made it known to the General
that what he was telling me to do was against the regulations, (Ex 27:4-5) '

Capt |l provided scanned copies of a portion of AFI 44-120 and a draft HQ LAANG
operating instruction which showed apparent comments by and initials of Brig Gen Veillon as
described in the above testunony (Ex 102)

Col at the time, recalled Capt - coming to him and
voicing his concerns about the modifications Brig Gen Veillon had directed him to make to drug
testing procedures. Col recollection, though not as detailed as that of Capt

, was consistent with Capt testimony. Col _ also provided possible
insight into Brig Gen Veillon’s motives for modifying and constructively relaxing observer
procedures. He indicated during his tour as wing commander there was a consistent lack of
support by the LANG leadership for drug abuse testing. ' Col || | JNNEEEE indicated he’d had
a number of conversations with Brig Gen Veillon about the program, one in particular following
a Staff Assistance Visit (SAV), whichindentified that the LAANG was not testing a large
enough population, Col— assessment was that Brig Gen Veillon did not
support the program because of a negative effect on retention and recruiting that would be .
caused by members testing positive for drug use. (Ex 71:1-3)

This assessment is consistent with testimony from Capt [JJJll in which he suggested the
same reason for lack of support of the program and pointed out during his time as ﬁ
that the LANG had some of the lowest percent of end-strength test rates

but some of the highest positive test rates of the state National Guards. (Ex 27:15) Data

obtained from NGB J-3 reflects LAANG test rates were below that required by NGB policy from
2005 (start date of data available) through 2007. Data was not available concermng the
comparison of the LANG or LAANG’s posmve test rates with those of other states. (Ex 103)

Maj at the tlme recalled Capt - seeking
advice from him after Brig Gen Veillon had directed the modification to drug testing procedures
and specifically recalled Capt [} telhng him Brig Gen Veillon did not want observers directly
watching members urinate into the specimen container as required by the related AFL. (Ex
at the time, also recalled the situation and recalled

11:13-14) Col ime, ituati
both discussing it with Capt and seeing documents Brig Gen Veillon had annotated and

initialed. His recollection was consistent with that of others cited above. -(BEx 32:8-10)
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. In addition to the above example, Capt | described another insfance in which he was
told by Brig Gen Veillon not to drug test AGRs as prescribed by NGB policy. As Capt

recalled, “we were told not to drug test at.all ... which once again is still a direct violation,

/hat the gmdance the guidance that comes from the AFI and NGB.” (Ex 27:10)
| at the time, confirmed Capt testimony and recalled Brig Gen

Veillon specifically directing no AGRs would be tested. (Ex 38:21) Review of NGB policy at
- the time indicated AGRs were to be fested at a rate equal to 100% of AGR end-strength. (Ex
104) . :

The testlmomes of Cap Col

| were found consistent with each other a.nd assessed as cred1b1e

FINDINGS OF FACT.

¢ Brig Gen Veillon directed Capt | to modify observer procedures for drug abuse
testing procedures for the LAANG contraty to guidance in AFI 44-120, Drug Abuse -
'Testmg Program and did so after being advised by Capt B such modification would
be in violation of AF guidance. (Ex 27:4-5; Ex 102; Ex 71:1-3; Ex 11:13; Ex 32:8-10)

s DBrig Gen Veillon directed Capt

ji not to drug test AGR personnel, contrary to NGB
policy. (Ex 27:10; Ex 38:21) R :

STANDARDS.

b6
b7c

L AF144-120, Drig Abuse Testing Program, 1 Jul 00, states: (Bx 77:19-20, 47-48)

Section C— C‘ham ‘of Custody Procedures,
5, Chain of Custody for Collectmg and Transporting Urine Specimens. .
5.3. DTPAM w111 ’

533, De31gnate for the member providing a specimen, a credible observer who is of the
same gender and has not been chosen to provide a sample during this collection time.
Note: Observers must be briefed on-site prior to the collection process, on their duties
and responsibilities. This briefing must consist of a verbal explanation as well as a
written 'statement signed and dated by the observer acknowledging their acceptance and
understanding of their responmbllataes and the consequences of their actions for not
performing their dities in accordance with established guidelines. -(Attachment 4 of this
AFI provides a sample observer briefing letter).

Attachment 4
SAMPLE LETTER - DRUG TESTING OBSERVER'’S BRIEFING

5. You must observe the member receive the empty.specimen bottle from the drug testing
monitor and you must enter the rest room with the member. You must direct the member
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This Is protected documeRy It will not Ryreleased (in whole or in part), reproduced, or given
additional dissemination (in whole or irart) outside Wgthe inspector general channels without prior approval

of The InsPRgtor. Generalg AF/IG) or designee.

FOR OFFRGIAL '.»-:---;_o NLY (FOUO)

000037 of 000092




b6
h7c

to wash his/her hands with only water then dry them prior to providing a specimen. You
must observe the member urinating directly into the labeled specimen bottle and capping
it. If a female chooses to use the optional wide-mouthed sterile collection cup, you must
directly observe the member providing the specimen, pouring the urine into the labeled
specimen bottle and cappmg it. As an observer, you are required by AFI 44- 120 10 ensure
that the specimen provided is not contaminated or altered in any way.

2, Natxonai Guard Drug Testing Pol1cy Memo 17 Dec 04 and FY 07 (no specific date),
states; (Ex 104)

Paragraph 3. The ARNG and ANG Active Guard and Reseive (AGR) will fest at a rate
equal to 100% of the AGR end-strength.

ANALYSIS,

When shown a copy of the previous cited documents prowded to SAF/IGS by Capt
I including modifications to observer procedures prescribed in AFI 44-120, Brig Gen

. Veillon indicated he was familiar with those documents and had made or directed the inclusion

of the annotated comments and/or changes to those documents. He also testified the initials JBV
at the top of the draft operating instruction and next to paragraph 5 of Attachment 4, Sample
Letter — Drug Testing Observer’s Briefing had been written by him. (Ex 102; Ex 60:9-12)

Brig Gen Veillon recalled the issue of observer procedures and a revision of the HQ
LAANG operating instruction on drug abuse testing first occurred to him after a conversation he
had with a LAANG airmen when he noticed that airmen sitting in the hallway of the
headquarters building over an extended period of time on a drill weekend. Brig Gen Veillon
stated when he asked the individual what he was doing there, the airman replied he was waiting
to drug test, but could not urinate becatise the observer was directly watching him trying to
urinate. Brig Gen Veillon stated, shortly thereafter, he asked Capt ]l about the procedures for
the observers, as he did not recall a requirement for observers to actually watch urine leave the
individual and enter the specimen container. (Ex 60:9) '

Brig Gen Veilion identified another event occiu'ring shortly after the one described above

- that also influenced his thinking on observer procedures and revisions to the operating

instruction. The general recalled seeing a long line of people in the headquarters building and
questioned why they were there. He stated after he was told they were awaiting drug abuse
testing he became concerned about the amount of time it would take, keeping the individuals
frorh their primary jobs. It was at this point, Brig Gen Veillon stated, he assessed the process
could be more efficient if one observer watched multiple peopleat the samie time. (Ex 60:9-10)

According to Brig Gen Veillon, he had a series of meetings and discussions with Capt
- over the period of several drill weekends to discuss the guidance in the related AFI and
revisions to the HQ LAANG operating instruction, He confirmed the documents SAF/IGS had

been given were a result of those meetings and discussions. Concerning the conversations with
' - 36
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"Capt &1 1], Brig Gen Veillon testified he either did not recall or did not remember discussions
about his views and/or guidance being contrary to AFI guidance and that it would not have been
“his intent for Capt ¢ to execute the guidance included on those documents. (Ex 60:10)

“While considering Brig Gen Veillon’s testimony that he did not recatl Capt [Tl
communicating to him it words or by showing him the AFI that the changes to observer
procedures he prescribed were conttary to AFI guidance, the preponderance of evidence
indicates Bng Gen Veillon had remewed the AFI and was aware of the conflict at the time. This
assessment is based not only on Capt [ detailed recollection of the issue, but also onthe
recollection of other members of the LANG Capt [ff§ had discussed the issue with as well as
Brig Gen Veillon’s confirmed annotations on the excerpt of AFI 44-120 and the draft HQ
LAANG operatmg instruction. (As prcvmusly cited.)

Itis unportant to note areview of the apphcable portions of AFI 44120 mdzcates
guidance is clear and specific concerning both observer procedures and the designation of an
observer for each individual being tested. It is hard to conclude a reasonable person with Brig
Gen Veillon’s time in service and level of respon31b111ty wouid believe the modifications
prescribed were penmss1ble within the provisions of the AFI

With: regard to Brig Gen Velllon s testimony that 1twould not have been his mtent for

Capt [B to execute the changes, it is evident from Capt 1| testimony and those of others
Capt [i58

discussed the issue with at the time that Capt 88 accepted Brig Gen Veillon's
guidance concerning modification of the observer procedures as directive in nature, A review of
Brig Gen Veillon’s annotations on the excerpt of AFI 44-120 and the draft HQ LAANG
operation instruction also suggests Brig Gen Veillon intended for the modified procedures to be
executed. The most elucidatory example is the annotation made by Brig Gen Veillon on the
excerpt of AFI 44-120 next to paragraph 5 on observet procedures. “This annotation includes not
only a prescribed modification to the procedures but also the note “Waiver” with his initials and
“CO LA ANG” underneath. This appears authoritative and directive in nature. Considering both
the testimony provided and the annotations on the documents cited above confirmed as
belonging to or directed by Brig Gen Veillon, the preponderance of the evidence indicates Bng
Gen Veillon intended the mod1f1ed procedures o be executed. (Ex 102)

It is important to note that evidence provided by Biig Gen Veillon during discussion ofa .

. previous allegation indicates the general may have felt the LANG had authority to direct the AF]

modifications. When asked a general question about his-view of AF and NGB guidance and
decision making within the ' LANG, Bng Gen Veillon indicated, while he viewed that guidance as
directive, The Adjutant General had waiver authority over many AFls. (Ex 58:7-8) This is
consistent with a number of side comments made by multiple witnesses during the course of the

investigation.

It is also jmportant to note while Brig Gen Veillon testified he did not think the modified
observer procedures he’d prescribed were ever executed and no conclusive evidence was
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obtained to determine whether they had been or not, the issue in this allegation relates to whether
or not Brig Gen Veillon directed modifications violating AFT 44120, not whether or not those
modifications were eventually executed. (Ex 60:10-11) According to Col _ the wing
likely put the procedures in place but disregarded them and followed the AFI gnidance when
executing the program, not wanting to violate AF guidance. (Ex 32:9)

With regard to giving guidance not to test AGR personnel, Brig Gen Veillon teétified,
he’d never made any comments on the subject statmg, “That’s an absolute, absolute lie.”

" Understanding that a great deal of time has passed since this event occurred, Brig Gen Veillon’s

recollection is completely inconsistent with that of both Capt [l and Col cited above.
As previously mentioned, Capt |l and Co! [EREEEE testimonies on this issue were assessed
as credible. Resultantly, the preponderance of evidence indicates Brig Gen Veillon directed

AGRs not be tested, in violation of NGB policy at the time.
CONCLUSION.

By a preponderance of evidence, based upon the findings of fact and swotn testimony,
the allegation that Brig Gen Joseph B. Veillon directed subordinate members to modify
Louisiana Air National Guard Drug Abuse Testing Program procedures, in violation of AFI 44-
120, Drug Abuse Testing Program, 1 Jul 00, and National Guard Drug Testlng Policy, was

SUBSTANTIATED.
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ALLEGATION 6. That Brig Gen Joseph B. Veillon directed subordinate members not
to submit casualty reports and/or required portions of casualty reports for deceased members of
the Louisiana Air National Guard, in violatior} of AFT 36-3002, Casualty Services, 25 Jul 05,

Additional Background. During the course of an initial interview supporting this
investigation, Col , 8 B provided information and supporting
evidence that Brig Gen Veillon had directed certain actions knowing they were in violation of
AT guidance. One of those became the basis for this allegation. (Ex 38:8)

According to Co! [, when the LAANG experienced the death of several members
in the 2005-2008 timeframe, an issue arose over the reporting of those deaths to other agencies
as required by AFI 36-3002, Casualty Services. Col [E§ I ] indicated Brig Gen Veillon, on
multiple occasions, directed her or her subordinate office responsible for submitting required

. casualty reports not to include certain AFI-required information in required casualty reports. (Ex

38:14-15; Ex 39:8-13)

Col [ stated Brig Gen Veillon directed the exclusions despite her and/or her

subordinate’s explanation of AFI requirements and the impact not meeting those requirements

could have on award of death and survivor benefits to members’ families. She indicated Brig.
Gen Veillons reason for not including the information appeared to bea desire not to have certain
information released outside the state. (Ex 38:15) : - '

In support of the discussion on this issue, Col B nrovided a copy of an email that
Brig Gen Veillon sent to her and others on 3 Dec 07 concerning a casualty report on a deceased
member, The email includes both a forwarded copy of the casualty report as well as Brig Gen
Veillon’s comments on the report. A review of the general’s comments indicates he was very
upset about the report, though he did not state specifically what he took issue with or why. His

own words from the email illustrate this best:

Here we are again, Does not look like you two-can control the MPF. I have asked ...

Directed ... And now here we are again reading this on www. I don't care ‘where the

requirement comes from ... I don't care what they learn in tech school. I will hold you
_ both res(p)onsible if this happens again. This is my last warning. If you want to stay in

your current jobs you better start doing your job or you will be looking for a new job. Do
" you two understand me. Iam concerned for your ability to command ... (Ex 105)

It is important to note a review of the report did not identify any irregularities in the
completion of the report nor any comments that appear to be offensive or inappropriate or in
conflict with the provisions of AFI 36-3002,

According to Col 1, individugls completing repmts.always did so with careful
consideration of the AFT and to her knowledge always inctuded only that information obtained or
received through AFl-authorized sourcés. (Ex 38:15; Ex 39:8+13) Her testimony was consistent
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with that of Capt |ESSSEEE e
AR (Doth currently and during the time in question). As &
IRRRNRERE Capt [ Vas responsible for the branch and individuals completing casualty reports

for the LAANG. (Ex 24:1, 5-9) '

During testimony, Capt |l indicated he was aware Brig Gen Veillon had raised issues
over certain items within one or more casualty reports in the 2005 to 2008 timeframe. He stated
initially he thought the issue was just a matter of providing additional information to help Brig
Gen Veillon understand the required contents of the reports and why certain information was
included. Capt B also stated he’d authored background information papers on reporting
requirements further explaining AFI requirements, including descriptions of authorized
information sources. Capt [l added he eventually became frustrated by the repeated issue of
including certain required information in casualty reports, stating, “I’ve been in this career field
since 1990, so it wasn’t anything new to me and I guess that’s what ... it was a little aggravating
that this is nothing new, why is it getting questioned now.” (Ex 24:5-9)

Col JERERRR . ring the latter portion of the subject timeframe, also recalled
several instances in which issues had arisen over Brig Gen Veillon’s direction not to include
certain information on' casualty reports. His recollection was consistent with that of Co! || R
and Capt - as described above. He also offered insight into Brig Gen Veillon’s rationale for -

- directing the exclusion of certain information and becoming upset about a released report, stating

Brig Gen Veillon appeared to believe including certain information was too insensitive or
impersonal and the reports went to foo many different agencies.” He added he had several
discussions at the time with Brig Gen Veillon concerning the AFI requirements, however Brig
Gen Veillon continued to direct the exclusion of certain information. Additionally, he validated

the previously cited email provided by Col [ (Bx 32:11-17)
. FINDINGS OF FACT. '

¢ Brig Gen Veillon directed subordinate members to exclude certain items and/or
exclude explicit.details on certain items in casualty reports for members in the LAANG
in exception to the provisions of AFI 36-3002, (Ex 38:14-15; Ex 39:8-13; Ex 32:11-
17; Ex 105; Ex 60:21-23)

o Bﬁg Gen Veillon threatened to fire a 159 FW wing commander and mission support
" group commander because a subordinate at the MPF included wording in a casualty

report Brig Gen Veillonfound either too sensitive and/or too graphic in detail. (Ex
105)

STANDARDS.

AFI 36-3002, Casualty Services, 25 Jul 05, states: (Ex 79:25-33, 134-135)
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Table 1.1. Rules for Casualty Reporting, Notification, and Assistance.

Casualty Reports are mandatory under following ap_blicable rules for ANG personnel
cited in witness testimony concerning this allegation:

Rule 3

Member of the ‘Aix-‘-Force (AF), USAFA cadet, and ANG/USAFR- member serving on
active duty (AD), extended active duty (EAD), active duty for training (ADT), inactive
duty for fraining (IDT) or performing authorized fravel directly to and from such duty

Rule 9

Menmber of the ANG or USAFR in a non-duty status or retired Reserve member awaiting .
pay at age 60 (refer to Chapter 6 for reporting procedures) -

General Guidance for Casualty Reporting and Guidance for Casualty Reporting '
under Rute 3 follows: : 3

Chapter 2

CASUALTY REPORTING

Section 24—General Information

2.1, Casualty Reports.

2.1.1. Overview: : o

2.1.1.1. See Table 1.1.,- Table 2.1,, Table 2.2., and Table 2.3, to determine which
commander submits reports and who receives them,

2.1.1.4. Reports must include an accurate, explicit account of the circumstances
surrounding the casualty. NOTE: This information is essential in assisting HQ
AFPC/DPRC in further categorizing the casualty as killed in action (KIA), missing in .
action (MIA), detained, captured, etc., for reporting to DoD. '

2.1.2. The CAR: . )

2.1.2.1. Immediately telephones HQ AFPC/DPFCS at DSN 665-3505 or 1-800-433-0048
(CONUS bases only) upon learning of a casualty without waiting for confirmation of the
data, ' ‘
2.1.2.3. Prepares Casualty Reports and sends them at once to HQ AFPC/DPECS by the
most expeditious means (pouch, courier, or first class mail when telephone or slectronic
communication is not possible due to combat, natural disaster, etc.). o

2.12.4. Transmits or delivers to the base telecommurications center, the appropriate
casualty message, as determined by HQ AFPC/DPFCS, within 4 hours of leaming of a
casualty. NOTE: Casualty Reports are exempt from MINIMIZE, -
2.1.3. Defense Casualty Information Processing Systern - Forward (DCIPS-Forward) is
an unclassified casualty reporting system. It is the primary method for transmitting all
casualty reports to AFPC/DPFCS and other agencies as outlined in Table 2.1., Table 2.2.

and Table 2.3. . :
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2.1.3.1. When DCIPS-Forward is not available, transmit the casualty report using
- Attachment 2, Attachment 3, Attachment 10, Attachment 11, Attachment 12, Aftachment
13, Attachment 14, Attachment 16, and Attachment 17 as appropriate,
2.1.4, Format for Casualty Reports:
2.1.4.1, See Attachment 2 through Attachment 5, Attachment 10 through Attachment 14,
Attachment 16 and Attachment 17 for completion of the &ppropnate report,
2.1.5. Initial and Supplemental Casualty Reports:
2.1.5.1. Casualty Reports are transmifted in an unclassified format.
2.1.5.2, If any item on the Casualty Report is classified then indicate by stating
“classified” for that item. :
: 2.1.5.3. Label unknown or unconfirmed items “TO BE SUPPLEMENTED” or
“UNCONFIRMED” respectively, and report or confirm the information as soon as
possible in a supplemental report.
2,1.5.4. Do not label any item “TO BE SUPPLEMENTED” if there is reportable
information available that would be of interest to family members or of value to the
addressees of the report. Instead, label such information “UNCONFIRMED.”
. 2.1.5.5. Label any item ot required or not applicable “N/A.”
2.1.5.6. If an initlal Casualty Report contains incorrect information, submit 2
supplemental report at once and label the corrected items “CORRECTED.”

Guidance for Casualty Reporting under Rule 9 above is as follows:

Chapter 6

AIR NATIONAL GUARD AND UNITED STATES AIR FORCE RESERVE

6.1. General Information. This chapter outlines the responsibilities and procedures for

reporting the deaths of ANG and USAFR members in a2 non-duty status, retired members

awaiting pay at age 60 and assisting theu- surviving NOK.

6.2. Responsibilities, .

6.2.3. Member’s unit commander should: .

6.2.3.1. Ensure that the MPF submifs the initiai Death Report (RCS: HAF- SV(AR)947 i)

(see Attachment 35), within 24 hours of learning of the member’s death.

6.2.4, MPF servicing the member's assigned unit should.

. 6.2.4.1.Contact the Services Squadron Mortuary Officer or NCO in accordance with AF1

; . 34-501, Mortuary Affairs Program, to determine eligibility for mortuary benefits.

P 6.2.4.2. Help commanders with casvalty services, including the preparation of mmai and

: supplemental Death Reports.

. 6243, Report casualties by inputting proper transaction into MilPDS, producing a
"Report of Death." NOTE: The "Report of Death” replaces special orders announcing
deaths for those states that no longer require them. )
6.2.4.4. Forward documents in accordance with Table 6.1.

6.3. Reporting Casualties,
16.3.1. Submit an' initial death report (see Attachment 35), to addressees listed in Table
6.1.

6.3.1.1. Within 24 hours of learning of the member*s death, the member's ass:gned unit at
the time of death prepares the initial repox"t
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6.3.1.1.1. Unit represeﬁtatlve immediately contacts the unit command post, which in turn
will contact the ANG Readiness Center’s Operations Center (ANG/XOC) at DSN 858-
6001, or by fax at DSN 858-7505.

 ANALYSIS.

Brig Gen Veillon recalled an issue arising over the content of casualty reports durmg the
2005 to 2008 timeframe and specifically recalled-engaging on-one particular report, objecting to
information included 1nthe paragraph detailing cause of death. He also recalied discussing the
issue with both Col [ &5 £ | at that time. This incident appears to be the same as
the initial mcldent hxghllghted above in the Addmonal Background section and discussed by
both Col g ‘ 1. Though Col Bi R { recalled-a different last name of the
individual involved, the clrcumstances and recollectxon of various discussions surrounding the
incident were consistent with each other. (Ex 60:13-19; Ex 38:15; Ex 32:12-13)

According to Brig Gen Veillon, he took issue with a copy of the report when he saw it
listed suicide as the cause of death and listed that as unconfirmed. He indicated he did not think
suicide should be listed as the cause of death unless it had been confirmed by the cofoner and -
was concerned the report might have some adverse impact on payment of life insurance policies
to the fam:ly and/or that it reflected insensitivities to the family, He also testified it was his
impression on first reading and discussing the report with Col i that it had been Col

who’d made the decision to classify the circumstances-of the individual’s death as a
suicide versus getting that information from an official source. He stated he felt Col [
allowed her sense of urgency to comply with NGB guidance to outweigh the broader need of the
sensitivity to the issue. Brig Gen Veillon admitted when he later asked Col [[EEE] about the
source of the information, she told him it had come from an official police report As a result, it
appears Brig Gen Veillon’s assessment of the source and validity of the listed cause of death on

the initial report was ill informed. (Ex 60:13-17)

‘Brig Gen Veillon recalled discussing the issue with both Col i ¢
stated both had expressed the need to include the information as it had been written in the report
He testified he did not recall “the level of detail” of the discussions and whether either individual
spemﬁcall ) rewewed the guidelines of the AFI with him to support their views. (Ex 60:16, 18,

BRI ;ccalled the conversations with Brig Gen Veillon and indicated both she and Col

R dlscussed the AFI requirements with the general (on this and other occasions) as well as
the reason it was important to include the information to which he objected. (Ex 39:11; ‘Ex 40:2-
3) Col B also recalled discussing the issue with the general and especially recalled the
general’s response, describing his reactzon to the wording of the catise of death as “ballistic.”

(Bx 32:15)

Accordmg to Col |, it was at some point afier the above incident that Brig Gen
Veillon directed certain information not be included in casualty reports, to include specifying
what lities of the report MPF personnel could and could not fill out. Col | added that
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following that gnidance created issties with AFPC. Furthermore, he recalled one instance in
which AFPC called and directed the report be completed in order to preclude additional delay in
the provision of death benefits. (Ex 32:14, 16)

Brig Gen-Veillon’s additional testimony on this allegation was somewhat ambiguous and
included discussion on his assessment that AFI 36-3002 was primarily ‘writtén fo address combat
casualties and that it was unclear when it came to addressing ANG casualties in various statuses

‘as well as unclear as to whether certain items on a given report are required or could be left blank
or marked “undetermined” or “to be supplemented.” He provided several examples to explain
his actions but they were hard to follow and difficult to envision as supportive of his reasons for
directing his subordinates not to include certain required information in casualty reports. (Ex
60:21-23) In general, Brig Gen Veillon appeared not to have a ¢lear understanding of the AFI
"and under what conditions various chapters and attachments of the document should be applied.

~ A review of the AFI indicated guidance on responsibilities, timelines, and reporting procedures -
was clear, concise, and understandable and no collateral issue was identified concerning how the
AFI is written.

While Brig Gen Veillon initially testified the only casualty report he had engaged on was
the one cited in the opcn'mg paragraph of this section, once confronted with_ a copy of an email
he had sent concerning a different report, he confirmed he’d taken issue with that report as well.

"(Ex 60:20; Ex 105) Brig Gen Veillon indicated, like in the initial example he had prov1ded he
took issue with the wording detailing the cause of death and supporting details, stating, “wi
don’t need to do this level of detail in a casualty report.” (Ex 60: 20, 22)

It is important to note Brig Gen Veillon stated his infent in raising issues over and
providing direction on exclusion of certain information on casualty reports was to be considerate
of senisitive information. He testified he had no intent to delay submission of those reports or
deny famlly members of any benefits. (Ex 60:18) .

It is also important to note that Brig Gen Veillon felt so strongly about the exclusion of
certain information on one particular report that he threatened to fire the both the wing and
mission support group commander (see quotation in Additional Background section.) (Ex 60:21-
22) o

The preponderance of evidence, including Brig Gen Veillon’s own testimony, indicates
Brig Gen Veillon both objected to and directed exclusion of cettain known information and
explicit details from casualty and death reports as prescribed by AFI 36-3002, Casualty Services.
This action is in conflict with both the general guidance of the AFI as well as more specific
guidance provided on the completion of various casualty reports. Paragraph 2.1.1.4. provides
general guidance on casualty reporting stating, “reports must include an accurate, explicit
account of the circumstances surrounding the Casualty,” In addition, the AFI addresses the
importance of not listing items in reports as unknown or “to be supplemented” when reportable
information exists that may be of value. Furthermore, specifically considering items in reports
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defailing é_ausq of death, the AFI directs when there is no confirmed manner and cause of death,
the report will include the preliminary determination with the label “UNCONFIRMED.” (Ex

©79:31-32, 175, 261) . | .

Rvidence provided indicates Brig Gen Veillon’s rationale for initially objecting to and
then directing exclusion of certain information on casualty reports was based on a desire not to
include information or details he felt too sensitive in nature of too graphic. Evidence was not
made available or identified, however, defining his criteria for determining what information fell
in those categories. Correspondingly, Brig Gen Veillon did not provide any evidence
demonstrating inaccuracies in the way the reports were completed orthat the inclusion of certain
details was in violation of AFI or other guidance. Asa result, it appeared Brig Gen-Veillon’s
decisions were arbitrary concerning what was or was not too sensitive or graphic, Regardless,
Brig Gen Veillon’s guidance to his subordinates to exclude explicit details and/or certain
information in casualty reports as prescribed by AFI 36-3002 was in violation of the AFL

" The preponderance of the evidence indicates Brig Gen Veillon directed subordinates not
to submit required portions of the casualty reports, but did let them submit reports.

CONCLUSION.

By a preponderance of evidence, based upon the findings of fact and sworn testimony,
the allegation that Brig Gen Joseph B. Véillon directed subordinate members not to submit
casualty reports and/or required portions of casualty reports for deceased members of the

' Louisiana Air National Guard, in violation of AFI 36-3002, Casualty Services, 25 Jul 05, was

SUBSTANTIATED.
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ALLEGATION 7. That Brig Gen Joseph B. Veillon personally directed assignment of
individuals to unit manning positions within the Louisiana Air National Guard in violation of
ANGI 36-2101, Assignments within the Air National Guard, 11 Jun 04, and AFI 51-604,
Appointment to and Assumption of Command, 4 Apr 06, (Ex 80, Ex 81)

Additional Background. During the course of interviews conducted during the early
stages of this investigation, a copy of an after action report on the review of LAANG personnel
processes conducted 20-23 Aug 07 was obtained from an anonymous source. The report
indicated the review was conducted by ANG members from another state and was completed at
the request of the 159 FW. (Ex 106)

While the report highlighted a number of administrative and procedural deficiencies,
several findings identified specific issues with the Unit Manning Document that violated AF
guidance. These findings included the double billeting of technicians and commanders, the
existence of an overgrade assignment that had expired in 2003, and the assignment of a major as
a commander of a unit in which there was an individual of higher grade and rank assigned to the
unit, It is important to note the copy of the report obtained did not include further details on the

- findings such as the names of individuals and/or positions involved. (Ex 106:5)

In addition to the identification of the above findings and other deficiencies, the report
provided an assessment of the underlying problem within the LAANG personnel processes that
led to those problems. The following sentence fromn the report puts it best: “Yes, we found
problems within Personnel; however most of those problems all revolve around the MPF being |
directed to violate regulations.” -(Ex 106:10)

Col R ! th- time of the review, confirmed the validity of the
findings and indicated Brig Gen Veillon was the general officer referred to in the report as the
individual directing the actions cited above. She testified Brig Gen Veillon directed execution of
the cited actions and was aware no relevant waivers had been obtained. (Ex 38:8; Ex 39:2-5)

To further gain visibility into the specifics of the findings and the ratlonale for the o
assessments in the reort an mtervzew was conducted w1th LtCol : -' e

: : ) and the 1nd1v1dual that
led the review of the LAANG personnei processes. A review of Lt Col | background
indicated she has extensive experience in the processes reviewed within the LAANG. She and
her co-team member, CMSgt , were assessed as credible subject matter experts on the
discrepancies and findings included in the Aug 07 report (Bx 21:1-2)

Lt Co! |INENR remembered the visit well and recalled being asked by Co! |KiliRE to
come to Louisiana “from the outside with a fresh set of eyes and just review the processes for

- regulatory compliance.” While Lt Col | ESRMR testified shé had not previously reviewed the

entire MPF processes of another state, she did indicate she had previously conducted detailed
reviews of Indiana’s wings and had provided telephone assistance to other states, (Ex 21:1-2) .

_ 46
This is a profected docum / b released (in whole or in part), reproduced or given
additional dissemination {(in whole or i i he inspector gen eral channels wzthout prior approval

000048 of 000092



‘b6
b7c

When asked if there was anything that stood out in her mind about her rev1ew with the
LAANG, Lt-Col L | replied “regulatory violations.” Her words describe best the situation

she found;

1 think it was ... two to three days to figure out who everybody was talking about because
_every time Chlef or [, either one, would bring up an issue or-concern, we were
told that they did things this way because the TAG told them to .., I couldn’t imagine an
Adjutant General having so much time on his hands that he could actually become that
involved in the details of the Air National Guard ... So I went back the next day and we
retraced our steps and specifically asked who they were talking about when they referred
to-the TAG and then it became-evident -that they were talking about the Assistant
Adjutant General for Air, And that every ... every section that we went to stated that .
they were, they knew what the rules were, they knew what the regs said, they knew what
the laws were, but they were doing things this way because the ATAG Air directed it.

(Bx 21:3)
Lt Col B 2dded that.no waivers or other documents were produced or shown to her
or CMSgt [RRIEH that mitigated the specific findings in the report as detailed in the second

paragraph of this section. :She also indicated the situation she described above was consistent
across the eight to ten MPF personnel and three commanders she and CMSgt B met with.
(Bx 21:3-5)

Further testimony from Lt Col [l provided possible insight into the leadershlp

, env1ronment of the LAANG and the poss1b1 reasons behind Brig Gen Velllon s actions:

And so everybody was afraid of him. Everybody was afraid to say anythmg or ask any
questlons or challenge any of his directives. They just kind of marched along and did
whatever he said to do. We were told that Guard Bureau had called the Adjutant General
and asked them to get their strength up on the Air side to make up for the units that were
under strength and so the one-star General just came and told them all get bodics in, I don’t
"care what the rules are, what the regs-say, just do it and, you know, they had people that
weren’t coming to drill that were still-on the books that they weren’t processing, separation
packages on, they had two time failures out of tech school and they were still keeping them
on the books and when we asked why they hadn’t started involuntary separation packages,
it was because he [Brig Gen Veillon] wanted to keep their strength up to make them look

good. (Ex21:8)

In addmon to individuals directly-involved in the personnel process review, Col |
i visit, recalled the event and that a number of

ANGI and AFI violations had been found. He did not recall specific details but did remember
that much of what the. team had found, “was stuff that Gen Veillon had told us to do, such as
double slot and triple slotting people, you know, just basically cooking the books to ma.ke our
numbers look good for retention.” (Ex 9:24)
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Col R & | 2t the time, also recalled the visit but remembered few details
of the report other than there were issues identified which the wing subsequently began to
address and correct. However, he did recall a senior leadership conference in which Brig Gen
Veillon had stated the LAANG would double slot personnel to obtain the end strength numbers
NGB was seeking to achieve. He also recalled Brig Gen Vellion stating they [the LAAN G]
would get waivers 1f required. (Ex 32:18)

FINDINGS OF FACT.

o Brig Gen Veillon directed subordinate members to double billet technicians and
commanders, confinue an overgrade assignment that had expired in 2003, and assign a
major as a commander of a unit in which there was an individual of higher grade and
rank, (Ex 106:5, 9; Ex 39:2-5; Ex 21:1-3, 8) -

STANDARDS.

[. ANGI 36-2101, Assignments within the Air National Guard, 11 Jun 04,-addresses
issues concerning double slotting of technicians and commanders as well as overgrade
assignments and states: (Ex 80:5-8, 14-16)

Chapter 2
ASSIGNMENT INSTRUCTIONS AND PROGRAMS

2.3. Assignment of Full-Time Personnel, Military technicians and military duty
personnel must be assigned as the position incumbent to a military UMDG position
compatible with their full-time duties and reSpon51b111t1es Under no circumstances will
military technicians or AGR personnel be assigned in an excess status without written
approval from ANG/DP, to-include projected losses within 24 months.

2.20. Assignment to Excess or Overgrade.

2.20.3. The MPF must monitor all actions within their semced units to ensure that excess
and overgrade situations do not occur as a result 'of assignment/reassignments except as’
authorized by this instruction,

2.20.9. No officer regardiess of grade may be placed in an excess status against a
commander position. Only under mission unique sifuations and in the best interest of the
ANG will this be authorlzed by ANG/DP.

2.21. Extension of an Initial Excess or Overgrade Status: If, after all factors have been
reviewed, a request for extension of an initial assignment to excess or overgrade
condition is considered in the best interest of the Air National Guard, submit the request
for extension, through the MPF and State Headquarters, to The Adjutant General, This
request for extension of an initial excess or overgrade assignment will then be submitted
to ANG/DPFOM for review and disposition. The request must include a definitive plan
for resolvmg the condition thhm 24 months, how the excesslovergrade condition

" gdditional dissemination (in whole or i
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occurred, and why the extension is in the best interest of the Air National Guard. Request
for extension of an excess assignment to a general” officer authorization must be
submitted to NGB-GO. Bach request for an extension to an initial excess or overgrade
status must be submitted acoording to the format in Attachment 2,

2, ANGI 33-101, 4ir Natzona! Guard Special Orders, 1 Mar 07, paragraph 12 refers the
readerto AFI51-604. AFIS51-604, Appointment to and Assumption of Command, 4 Apr 06,
addresses the issue of assigning an individual as a commander of-a unit when he is of lower
grade than another mdmdual assigned to the unit and eligible to command and states: (Ex. 81:3-
4)

_.2..Successiox'1 to Command.

. 2.5. Appointment to Coramand. An officer asmgned to an organization, present for duty,
eligibte to command the organization, and senior or equal in grade to all other officers in
the orgamza’uon may be appointed to command the orgamzatmn

2.5.1. If one or more officers senior iri grade (but not necessarily rank), eligible to
command and present for duty, are assigned to an Air Force unit, superior competent
‘authority may not appoint another officer of lower grade to command that unit and thus.
the ofﬁcer(s) of hlgher grade,

ANALYSIS.

Biig Gen Veillon testified that prior to Lt Co! [EEEEEEH assistance visit to the LAANG
he had a sense there were problems within MPF processes and, resultantly, he had directed Col
i to bring in an outside ag review. He stated it was this
direction that led to Lt Col [l = visitto the LAANG. (Bx 61;2)
The general indicated he did not attend an outbnef for the visit and did not think that anyone else

-did either, Brig Gen Veillon stated when he received a copy of the written report he was

shocked and 1mmed1ately arranged a meeting with wing leadership to begin to address the broad
range of issues identified in the report. (Ex'61:2-3) :

When directly asked if either he or MG Landreneau had directed individuals to violate

~ ANGIs or AFls in regard to assignment of personnel to UMD positions, Brig Gen Veillon stated,
" ¢ one hundred percent deny it.” He further indicated it would never have been his intent to '
double slot technicians or direct other personnel actions in violation of ANGI 6r AFI guidance

without first obtammg a waiver for that action. Brig Gen Veillon placed responsibility for

ob ining those waivers on the MPF and unit commanders and stated he did not recall Col

or others identifying any issues with personnel actions he-had divected and/or approved.
(Ex 61: 4-9) It is important to note no waivers or requests for waivers in support of the issues .
referred to in this allegatlon were provided or obtamed during the course of this investigation.
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Brig Gen Veﬂlon testified he thought the reason he was implicated for ANGI and AFI
violations was somehow tied to Col JESikEE and a possible cffort on her part to defend the MPF,
the MSG, and herself. Brig Gen Veillon was unable to offer any further evidence or identify
other witnesses that could support his conclusions. This explanation was assessed as speculation
and came across as an attempt to displace his own potential responsibility in these actions. (Ex
61:4-9) Similarly as mentioned i the analysis of other allegations in this report, Brig Gen
Veillon did not offer the possibility or admit any insight into how his own actions and statements
may have resulted or contributed to the implications against him by MPF personnel and other

commanders,

Brig Gen Veillon did indicate prior to and at the time of Lt Col MR review that the
LAANG was under pressure from the Guard Bureau to retain end strength and it was commonly
understood that meeting that guidance required double slotting of pérsonnel for which waivers
would be required. He reiterated during this portion of his testimony that obtaining waivers to
permit this double slotting was not his resporisibility but that of subordinate commanders and
MPF personnel, (Bx 61:7-8)

With regards to the asstgnment of an individual as commander of a unit in which there
was a senior, qualified officer assigned, Brig Gen Veillon recalled the specifics of that action and
indicated it was a conscious decision made by he and MG Landreneau with the intent the
individual selected would be promoted at the first opportunity. He added the decision was based

- on placing the most qualified, desiring individual in the position and the lack of interest in the
b6 | position shown by the more senior individual, Brig Gen Veillon further stated he believed MG
b7¢. | Landreneau, as TAG, had waiver authority over the provisions of AFI 51-604, Appomtment to

and Assumption of Command. (Ex 61:9-10)

In order to gain additienal details and insight into the personnel actions cited as ANGI
and AF¥I violations in the 2007 report two personnel officers from the LAAN G were
_ interviewed. The first, Capt R L
and the second, Capt
LANG. Both were assessed as individuals that would best have knowledge of the cﬂed actions
as those issues are within their areas of responsibility and/or supervision, both currently as well
as during the time of the assistance visit. (Ex 25; Ex 29:1)

Unfortunately, little specific evidence concerning the cited personnel actions was
obtained from either individual. Both stated it was difficult to comment without having specifics
of individuals and/or positions involved. While Capt [ljill§ stated he had not been personally
directed to violate ANGIs or AFIs with regard to the personnel actions detailed in the 2007
report, he stated he had little to no visibility into who would have directed those actions and
whether waivers for them had been requested and/or obtained. Capt BB 2dded once he
advised commanders of proper administrative processes and waivers required to complete
personnel actions, he did not track or follow-up on subsequent processing of any required
waivers as approval authority and waiver action occurred at the JFHQ. He concluded by stating
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when he received documentation from JFHQ directing execution of a personnel action he

executed it with the assumption that proper approvals and waivers had been obtained. (Ex 25;
: would have had direct knowledge of the

Ex 24:12-16) Resultantly, it is unlikely Capt §
ANGI and AFI violations cited in this allegation. Finally, Capt fi 8] mentioned he thought
some individuals may have misinterpreted the-emphasis on end strength numbers as-guidance to
“do whatever,” but he offered no specific evidence to support that speculation. (Ex 24:21)

It is important to note several other witnesses told SAF/IGS that Capt Rl had kept
memorandums for record detailing inappropriate personnel actio uch as those cited in this
allegation: (Ex 9:24; Ex 39:5) During initial contact with Capt 1] he indicated he had

" important information to share and seemed cager to testify, but when interviews were conducted

with him he seemed to recall few specifics and often spoke in generalities. Whilehis overal]
testimony-was assessed as credible, it did appear he was withholding information. Based-on
other testimony obtained off-recording, it is assessed Capt Jilig withheld information because

. he feared some type of refribution if he provided information that might reflect negatively on

Brig Gen Veillon.

Capt [Bl also indicated she was unablé to provide insight into the personnel actions
related to this allegation without having specific details of the individuals and/or positions
involved. She did confirm that approval authority for the actions would have been at the JFHQ
level with TAG having final approval of most actions. Capt JiIR also testified she was unaware

- of any pervasive issues concerning the types of personnel actions cited, but did indicate it was

possible they could have occurred. She also mentionéd that given the vast number of actions
processed by her office over recent yéars, it would be very difficult to research historical records
to find any supportive evidence-one way or another concerning the subject personnel actions.

| (Bx 29:16-22)

B and Capt B testimony that approval authority for the personnel
actions cited in this allegation was retained by JFHQ up to and including MG Landreneau, and
glven Brig Gen Veillon’s previously cited testimony concerning his in-depth involvement in
LAANG cominand actions, it is assessed as probable that Brig Gen Veillon, despite his
testimony otherwise as cited above, coordinated on if not apptoved both the personnel actions in

questiori as well as any waiver requests for those actions requiring it.

Given Capt [

Based on the 2007 after-action re

' the review of the LAANG personnel processes
and previously cited testimony from Col s =

Lt Col . Col | £ | and Co!

- the prepondetance of evidence indicates Brig Gen Veillon directed the persoel actions cited in

this allegation to include the double billeting of technicians and commanders, the existence of an
overgrade assignment that had expired in 2003, and the-assignment of a major as a commander
of a unit in which there was an individual of higher grade and rank assigned to the unit,

In addition, based on the testimony of Lt Col | - : L
3, the preponderance of evidence indicates Brig Gen Veillon directed execution of these
: ' 51
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actions with the knowledge related waivers had not been obtained as correspondingly required
by ANGI 36-2101, Assignments within the Air National Guard, paragraphs 2.3, Assignment of
Full-Time Personnel, 2.20. Assignment to Excess or Overgrade, and 2.21. Extension of an Initial
Excess or Overgrade Status; and AFI 51-604, Appointment to and Assumption of Command,
paragraph 2. Succession to Command. (Ex 80; Ex 81) In addition, Brig Gen Veillon’s own
testimony indicates both he and MG Landreneau directed and/or approved one of the personnel
actions believing TAG had the waiver authority over the AFI to do so. [t is important to note
that Brig Gen. Veillon was unable to provide any documentation or other evidence supporting his
claiin that TAG has waiver authority over AF guidance and AFI 51-604 makes no mention of

such authority by state adjutant generals. (Ex 81)

CONCLUSION.

By 4 preponderance of evidence, based upon the findings.of fact and swomn testimony,
the alleganon that Brig-Gen Joseph B, Veillon personally directed assignment of individuals to
unit manning positions within the Louisiana Air National Guard in violation of ANGI 36-2101,
Assignments within the Air National Guard, 11 Jun 04, and AFI 51-604, Appointment to and
Assumption of Command, 4 Apr 06, was SUBSTANTIATED.
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~ did not recall the specifics of any follow on con

" additional dissemination (in whole or &

ALLEGATION 8. That Brxg Gen Joseph B. Veillon abused his authority as defined by

AFI 90-301, Inspector General Complaints Resolution, 15 May 08, by wrongfully disapproving
and/or refusing to forward for apptoval to MG Bennett Landreneau, The Adjutant General, an

award recommendatlon for a subordinate member.

Additional Background During the course of a mtnessmtervxewmth ol |

shie was informed by Col ?ij : -

an award reconunendauon he subinitted ot her to The Adjutant General for approval. Accordmg
to Col | i [ told her the reason Brlg Gen Veillon would not forward the package
was because he did
ral’s Normnatlon Comnuttee She also. mdmated that Col |

__ ofﬁmal personnel records confirmed she did not receive an
[ (Dec05 through Dec 08, the final 3 years of her 8-year
gl In addition, a review of her officer performance

a331gnment 2 RS
reports determined that her reports for those 3 years reflected a level of erformance equal to that
: 3| official record

for a prior period in which she had a received an award, Based on Col [
of performance no supporting reason could be identified as to why Brig Gen Veillon might deny
forwarding ap award package submltted by the 159 FW/CC. (Ex 38 1; Bx 107)

Col [N recalled submitting a Meritorious Service Medal (MSM) recommendation
package for Col E 8 0 JFLIQ. He also recalled being told by Co! [EREEH the MSM would
not be approved by Ieadershlp above him [Brig Gen Veillon and then sequentially MG
Landreneau). He stated he no longer recalled the reason he was told the MSM would not be
approved, but his assessment was it was because Col S had interacted with the Adjutant

General’s Nomination Committee and that was not viewed favorably by Brig Gen Veillon. He'
anon with Col fl about the status of his

| testimony was consistent with that of Col

award recommendation. (Bx 32:21-22) Col
: B and both were assessed as credible.

To gain further mformatmn on the submission of the award recommendation package by
R | hat ocourred-at JFHQ following the package submission, Col [ERERR v
mterwewed as the award package would have been submitted to his office prior to bemg
forwarded to Brig Gen Veillon and then MG Landreneau, During testimorty, Col
he did not specifically recall anything abou an award recommendation for Col [
including the MSM mentioned by Col g . He injected he thought LAANG leadershlp was
upset with her for talking with the Adjutant General’s Nomination Committee and providing
information to the Committee that might be defrimental to MG Landreneau, however, he did not
specifically and directly link that point to the award recommendation package. (Ex 22:37-38)
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It is important to note Col JESESERE comments about the interaction between the Adjutant
General’s Nomination Committee and members and leadership of the LANG painted a
confusing, complicated picture, one apparently influenced by various views about why the
Commitiee existed, what its purpose was, and what affect it might have, Col JEllRN indicated
he’d heard MG Landreneau had stated he was not concerned about the work of the Committee
and he emphasized neither MG Landreneau nor Brig Gen Veillon had given guidance to
subordinate units within the LANG and LAAN G respectively concerning how to respond should
a member of the Committee contact them.!! Col seemed to agree that a committee
appointed by the governor of the state and, as such, the commander of the LANG would have
authority to seek and gather information on the operations and personnel within the LANG in an
independent manner, similar to that of an IG. However, he described those individuals that

. responded to the Committee’s inquiries as “naive” for providing information without first
seeking higher-level approval, to include consideration of the political impact of providing
requested information. (Ex 22:5-10, 36-38)

In addition, Col - stated he understood MG Landreneau had directed there would be
no retiibution against anyone in the LANG that was somehow linked fo the Committee. Yet, on
the other hand, he stated that LANG leadership was upset with individuals that communicated
with and/or provided information and/or support when contacted. Correspondingly, when asked
questions about the MSM recommendation package submitted by Col [l for Col IR,
his conversation turned almost immediately to the dissatisfaction of LAANG leadership with Col

for interacting with the Adjutant General’s Nomination Committee. (Ex 22:5-10, 36-38)

FINDINGS OF FACT.
- « Coll submltted an award recothmendation package for Col to JFHQ,
b6 LANG commensurate with Col [N departure as
b7c s The award recommendation was disapproved at a level above Col

The award recommendation was not disapproved for performance or dzsclplmary reasons.

- STANDARDS.
~ AF1 90-301, Inspector General Complaints Resolution, 15 May 08, states: (Ex 72:211)

Abuse of Authority — an arbitrary or capricious exercise of power by a military member
or a federal official or employee To qualify as arbitrary -or capricious, the following
must be met; |

1) the action either adversely affected the rights of any person or resulted in personal
gain or advantage to the responsible management official (RMO).

" Col JEERRR also testified that 1o guidance was given from JFHQ to the wing on how or whether to respond
should a member of the Adjutant General’s Nomination Commitiee request contact or information. (Ex 32:26)
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2) the RMO did not act within the authority granted under applicable regulations, law
or policy; the RMO’s action was not based on relevant data and factors; or the RMO’s
action was not rationally related to the relevant-data and-factors.

Attachment 22 of the same instruction contains the format to be used when
analyzing abuse of authority:

Attachment 22
FORMAT FOR ACID TEST FOR ABUSE OF AUTHORITY

Answer the following questions to determine if abuse of authonty has-occurred:
1. Did the responsible management. official’s (RMO?s) actions either:
a. Adversely affect any person? (e.g., demotion, referral OPR, exira duty; etc.)
or
b. Result in personal gain or advantage to the RMO? {e.g., promotion, award etc.).
If questions 1(a) and 1(b) are both answered "no," then it is not necessary o consider
. question two,
If either part of questlon 1(a) or 1(b) is answered "yes," the 10 must answer questxons
two
and three.
2. Did the RMO act w1thm the authomty granted under apphcable regulations, law or
policy?
3. Was the action arbltrary and caprjclous (you must use the fol]owmg factors in your

decision)
a, What were the Reasons stated by the responsxble oﬁicml for taking, withholding, or

threatening the action?

b. What was the Reasonableness of the action taken, withheld, or threatened com:dermg
the

complamant’s performance and conduct?
c. Were the actions taken by the RMO Consistent with past practice?

d. What was the Mthe of the RMO for deciding, taking, or-withholding the personnel

action?

—

 ANALYSIS,

Brig Gen Veillon testified he never saw an award recornmendation package for Col
Bl at the time she departed her position as . He provided a summary of the

he | LAAN G award sbnnsswn process, conﬂrrmng thewardr ndation would have been
b7c ’ 12s [ il and then forwarded to
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he would have signed it and forwarded it to MG Landrencau. He also testified he had “no
issues” with Col at the time of her departure as 159 MSG/CC. (Ex 61:13-16)

It is important to note that Brig'Gen Veillon was careful and deliberate with his choice of
words when discussing the award recommendation package for Col [N, stating several times
he’d never “seen” the package. .

During the interview, Brig Gen Veillon offered as additional evidence on his behalf a
copy of an email sent to him by Col [ on 29 Jan 10. In the email, Co! |EEEE indicated -
there were no records in JFHQ files that an award recommendation package had been submitted
for Col B In addition, Col JRERRN indicated he did not think Col would have
submitted one because of “his negative opinion” of her; and, that if Col had done so, he
would have denied it at his level. The email did not include any rationale as to why Col '
would have denied the recommendation.'? (Ex 98:51)

Col I statements in the 29 Jan 10 email partially conflict with his testimony

© provided to SAF/IGS on 9 Jan 10. In the SAF/IGS interview, Col |l made no mention he

did not think Col ‘Nould have submitted an award recommendation package, nor did he
mention that if Col had done so, he would have denied it at his level, Given Col

firm recollections he’d both forwarded an award recommendation package to Col

had told him the package would not be approved above his level, as

. and that Col :
well as Col recollection of having been given a similar account by Col |, it is

assessed that either Col ] does not accurately recall the events and details surrounding Col
submission, or he was intentionally withholding evidence relevant to this allegation.

Based on the testimony cited above and in the Additional Backgfound section, it is
concluded Col [JJJJIl submitted an award recommendation package for Col I to JFHQ as
he testified and that it was disapproved at a level above Col [Jl. by Brig Gen Veillon and

‘also possibly by MG Landreneau. Given both Brig Gen-Veillon and Col testimony that
- MG Landreneau would not make a determination without Brig Gen Veillon’s signature or input,

it is concluded Brig Gen Veillon pérsonally disapproved, directed or, at a2 minimum,
recommended the disapproval.” (Ex 61:14; Ex 22:3) " -

Moteover, Col | mention of Col MR interaction with the Adjutant General’s
Nomination Committee during discussion of this allegation along with his statements that LANG

2 cot I stateraent that Cc’ had a “negative opinion” of Col I is unsupported by any other
testimony, including that of Col - '

13 1t is assessed as plausible that the award recommendation package, rather than be formally disapproved {e.g,,
through signdtures on a coordination sheet), may simply have been ignored upon submission with no further action
taken. This would account for Col [J R testimony he was unable to find any record of the submission and Brig
Gen Veillon’s testimony he had “never seen” the package, For the purposes of this analysis, disapproval includes
both formal action through documentation as well as informal action such as withholding the package from

processing or providing verbal guidance to the same effect,
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set w1th 1nd1v1duals linked to-the Comumnittee are assessed as provxdmg further
support to Col H testimony the award recommendation was disapproved
because Col communicated with and/or provided information to the Committee, not

because of a performance or disciplinary issue.

leadership was u

Despite Brig Gen Ve111011 s recollection otherwise, the preponderance of evidence
indicates Brig Gen Veillon refusal to forward the award recommendation package for Col
1, adversely affecting the member. The preponder f evidence also indicates this
action was based on an arbitrary, personal dislike of Col | commumcatlon with the
Adjutant General’s Nomination Committee, not-on-a performance or disciplinary issue, therefore

- . making his action an abuse of authority as defined in AFI 90-301.

Taking the above information and applying the “acid test” for abuse of authority we have:

Q1. Did the responsible. management official’s (RMO’s) actions either:
a. Adversely affect any person? (e.g., demotion, referral OPR, exira duty, etc.)
or

. b. Result in personal gain or advantage to the RMO? (e. g., promotion, award, etc.)

1 her deserved MSM adversely affected her military record;

Al, Yes, denymgCo :

‘the denial acnon did not necssanly result in personnel gain for Brig Gen Veillon. 14

Q2. Did the RMO act w1th1n the authority granted-under. applicable regulations, law or
pohcy?

A2, Y. Brxg Gen Veillon had the -authority to recommend approval or dlsapproval of
i | MSM package.

Q3. Was the action arbitrary and capricious:

A3. Yes, Brig Gen Veillon’s action was arbitrary and capricious.

a. Reasons — the preponderance of the evidence indicates the reason Col

.. was disapproved was because she had talked to the Nomination Commmittee.

b. Reasonableness — no this is not reasonable; approvalidisapproval of awards are
supposed to be based on the member’s performance during the timeframe of the service

covered by the wayward nomination package.
c: Conmstent with past practice — no, most awards are approved/disapproved on merit.

4 However, this action would be consistent with testtmony and evxdence that if Brig Gen Veillon believed you had
in any way “crossed him,” or been disloyal to him he would “get you back.” In doing so here, he sent out a
powerful message to the LAANG 10 keep quiet or suffer the conseguences,
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d. Motive — the preponderance of the evidence mdrcates the motive in this case is
retribution.

Thus, the preponder ance of the evidence shows that Maj Gen Veillon refused to forward
Col [ MSM package for approval,

. CONCLUSION.,

By a preponderance of evidence, based upon the findings of fact and sworn testimony, .
the allegation that Brig Gen Joseph B. Veillon abused his authority as defined by AFI 90-301,
Inspector General Complaints Resolution, 15 May 08, by wrongfully disapproving and/or
refusing to forward for approval to. MG Bennett Landreneau, The Adjutant General, an award
recommendation for a subordinate member, was SUBSTANTIATED.
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" Both individuals indicated they had recommended Lt Col i
-added she had recommended him for retention asthere wasno one else in the‘group in 2 pos1t1on

-, retenfion. Based on CoI L

for consideration 15 included w:thm the AFL. (Ex 74: 1-2)

- ALLEGATION 9. That Brig Gen ] oseph B. Veﬂlon abused his authority as defined by
AFI 90-301, Inspector General Complaints Resolution, 15 May 08, by wrongfully. directing
inclusion of a subordinate member on a list of members of the Louisiana Air National Guard
selected for non-retention, in violation of ANGI 36-2606, Selective Retention of Air National
Guard Officer and Enlisted Personnel, 26 Feb 97.1

Additional Background. During interviews conducted

|, may have been wrongfully non-rétained while he was on
extended Active Duj and deployed to Southwest Asia. (Ex 38:6-7) To further- clarify the issue
as contacted at his home. He testified while he was deployed and serving on
xtend tive Duty tour from May - Nov-08,-his-wife received-a letter stating ‘he had been
non~retamed Lt Col § stated it was his. understandmg of ANGI 36-2606 that he should
have been removed from consideration for that action since he was on an extended Active Duty
tour. He added he had not raised this issue up his chain of command at the time because he
feared some type of retribution either against himself or his son, a-full-time member of the
Louisiana Army National Guard, as he believed the reason he was selected for non-retention was
related to Brig Gen Veillon’s perception he had provided information to the Adjutant General’s
Nomination Committee. Lt Col B indicated instead, he requested an extension of his
retlrement date to enable him to retire with full benefits from his federal technician position. Lt
B officially retired on 30 Mar 09 from the LANG. (Ex.26:10-12; Ex 108)

= was selected for non-
upervisor and
® respectivel

for retention. Col [

To gain additional evidence of how and why Lt Col FEIE
retention, inferviews were first conducted with Lt Col- ret J ones -immediat
wing commander at the timé, Col ETE and Col

to move-into his position (deputy group commander) and the wing had routinely gapped the
position anyway. (Ex 38:6-7; Ex 40:3; Ex 32:23-26)

- : t the time, was a mernber of the Selective
Retention Board, which recommended Lt Col B 1 for nori-retention. His recollection was
that the recommendation comlng to the board concerning Lt-Col 8 was-for non-

i | and Col [ tcstimony, this indicated someone had
recommendatlon prior to the board convening. Based on Col |

revised Col

15 ANGI 36-2606, Selective Retention of Air National Guard Officer and Enlisted Personnel, describes the
responsibilities and provides authority, guidance and procedures for the Selective Retention Prograin (SRP) for
eligible ANG officers and enlisted personnel. The SRP is a force management tool used to ensure a quality trained
force, stable promotion opportufities for lower grade personnel, and a viable combat ready force. In general, ANG
officers and enlisted are considered for the SRP once they are retirement eligible; once ¢ligible, member records,
along with a recommendation from their commander, meet a Selective Retention Board (SRB) which makesa
recommendation to the Adjutant General of the state to retain or non-retain the individual. A spemﬁc list of criteria
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further testimony, Brig Gen Veillon was the only additional individual in a position fo influence
the process between submission of the wing commander’s recommendation and the convening of
the SRB. Col RN added it was notmal procedure for the board to follow commander
recommendations. (Ex 22:41-42) .

Conéeznjng the reason Lt Col was recommended and selected for non-
stated they were never told the specific reason for

that determination. Col assessment was that it was because Brig Gen Veillon
suspected Lt Col had interacted with and/or provided information to the Adjutant
General’s Nomination Committee. (Ex 40:3-4; Ex 32:25-26) Col [ also offered:
information linking Lt Col ﬂ non-retention to the perception he’d interacted with the
Committee. (Ex 22:43) None of these individuals provided testimony indicating Lt Col (ret)
B scicction for non-retention was a result of the force management rationale provided in AFI
36-2606, though they did confirm he met the tlme~m-serv1ce criteria.!

A copy of Lt Co! | NS deployment orders were obtamed and his deployment and
related re-deployment dates were verified. (Ex 109) In addition, a copy of board records from
the SRB recommending Lt Col I o: non-retention were obtained and reviewed and his
selection for non-retention was verified. In addition, those same records verified Col [l s
member of the board and Brig Gen Veillon as the board president. (Ex 110; Ex 111) '

It is important to note that while initial review of ANGI 36-2606, paragraph 2.1.1.3.

- affirmed Lt Col |l assertion he should not have been considered for non-retention by

the 2008 SRB because he was serving on an extended Active Duty tour, a “detailed review of the
ANGI along with documentation obtained during the course of the investigation determined the
type of Active Duty tour he was serving on was not covered by that paragraph, (Ex 109) Thus,
Lt Col JJ 25 cligible to be considered for non-retention during-the 2008 SRP process.

- To the contrary, key individuals within the LAANG and JFHQ to include Col [, Col

, Capt [ (the individual at JFHQ responsible for overseeing the SRP process), Col’
and Brig Gen Veillon believed at the time of their SAF/IGS interviews that paragraph
2.1.1.3. did apply and that the inclusion-of Lt Co! |||l on the list of individuals to be
considered for retention/non-retention by the 2008 SRB was in error. (Bx 40:2-3; Ex 32:24; Ex
29:25-27; Bx 22:44-45; Ex 61:19-23; Ex 98:55-59) ‘'This conflict in understandmg of the
provisions of the ANGI, while adding to the complexities of the 1nvest1gat1on of this allegation,
did not materially affect the outcome and further mention of this point is limited to that needed to
support other assessments and conclusxons

16 Col and Col JJJll were very careful in their choice of words when addressing their knowledge of why
Lt Col was recommended for and ultimately selected for non-retention. However, when asked why Col

recommendation to retain him may have been changed, the first reason both of them brought up was the
perception by LANG leadership {in other words, Brig Gen Veillon and/or MG Landreneau] that Lt Col h
had provided information to the Adjutant General's Nomination Committee. Their caution was understandable
given both individuals® stated concern Brig Gen Veillon may negatively impact them or their careers for providing
adverse information to SAF/IGS or others. .

60

This is a profected documé ; released (in whole or in part), reproduced, or given
additional dissemination (in whole or i } oulsi he inspector general channels without prior approval

000062 of 000092



FINDINGS OF FACT.

for retention in the 2008

A recomménded Lt Co_l

b6
b7c

o was deployed to Southwest Asia at the time the SRB convened. (Ex

| was selected for and non-retained not as a force mana gement tool but
as retribution for perceived communication with the Adjutant General’s Nomination
_ Committee, .
.o MG Landreneau, the Adjutant General, approved the recommendatwns of the SRB. (Ex

‘111)
STANDARDS.
Abuse of Authority - see allegation #8 above.

ANGI 36-2606, Selective Retention of Air Natzonal Guard Oﬁ“ cer and Enlzsted
Personnel 28 Feb 97 states: (Bx 74:1-3) .

1.3, Responsibilities: '
1.3.1, The National Guard Bureau (NGB/CF) has overall responsnblhty for development and oversight of the ANG

SRP, -

1.3.2, The Air National Guard Readiness Center, Directorate of Manpower and Personnel (ANG/MP) has the
responsibility for monitoring the ANG SRP and providing pmoedural guidance and st&fﬁng excephons {0 the Stateg
and territories.

1.3.3, State adjutants general (AGs) have authority for implementing the policy and procedures contained herein
-and for establishing an effective personnel force management program-for units undet their jurisdiction, The -
adjutants general must ensure that the conduct of SKRBs under the authorify-of this instruction are conducted

" exclusively as a force-management tool to ‘effect needed personnel adjustments to ensure contmumg mis sion

viability and career expectation of assigned personnel,
1.3.4, TAGs and commanders are responsible for ensuring personnel subject to consideration under this instruction

receive a fair and impartial review based on the needs of the unit, the ANG and the USAF IAW established policy.
13,5, Each Military Personnel Flight (MPF) is responsible f’or providing unit dnd State administrative support of
this instruction,

1.3.6. Each ANG State Headquarters is responsible for implementing this instruction upon TAG- authonty fo
include appropnate admuustrahve suppott for the conduct of the boards,
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2. Program Management.

2.1, Criterla for Selective Retention Consideration: ' ) .
2.1.1, All ANG officers {oxcept adjutants general, assistant adjutants general, and general ofﬁcers) and enlisted
members wilt be considered under the SRP if they meet all of the t‘ollowiug.

2.1,1.1. Are retirement eligible on or befors 1 January of the year in which the board convenes. "Members
previously selected for retsntion under any authority, including officers retained under authority of the Secretary of
the Air Force for any reagon beyond their mandatory separation/discharge date based on maxirum years of
commissioned service permitted by law, will be inclided and again considered. Individuals in Air Guard Reserve
(AGR) who have completed 20 years' satisfactory service toward a non-regular retirement, but have not completed
20 years of active duty will be considered unless exempt by paragraph 2,1.1:4. below,

2,1.1.2, Are not otherwise scheduled fo be separated between 1 January and 31 December of the year of the board's
review for such reasons as mandatory separation/discharge date, maximum age, medical dlsquahﬁoanon, retuement,
promaotion deferment, or not selected for reenlistment, :

2.1.1.3, Asof 1 January, are not serving on a Title 10 statutory tour (e.g. 10 USC 10211 10 USC 10305, 10 USC
12310, 10 USC 12402) or on extended active duty with the Air Force, Members commencing such tom's between 1
January and publication of the board results will be removed from consideration.

2.1.14. Members in AGR status who have or will have between 18 and 20 years of active duty (sanctumy zone)
toward retirement during the calendar year of the board are exerpt from consideration. -

2.1.2. Officers who have completed at leagt 20 years ot‘sansfactory servige toward a non-regular retirement, but
have not completed the minimum promotzon service time to vetire ini highest grade held are not axcmpt from

consideration (see paragraph 3.1.5.}.
*2.1.3. TAG determines an SRB will convene to review retirement eligible officers and enhated personnel All

members within a State will be reviewed once the TAG directs an SRRB will be cpnducted

ANALYSIS.

As previously identified, Brig Gen Veillon was the president of the 2008 LAANG SRB.
As such, he testified he did not récall the incoming recommendation for retention/non-retention
concerning Lt Col [l but he did recall the board recommending he be selected for non- -
retention. He further added, based on the leve] of information coming into the board, he would
not have known the retention recommendatioris made by member’s commanders. He also made
a point of stating he would not have been aware of whether or not proper administrative
processes had been followed in briefing members they would be considered by the board,
whether commanders had informed members of their retention recommendations, or whether
commanders and members had completed proper documentation for instances in which
comumanders recommended non-retention. This seemed odd to point out and appeared as if he
was trying to absolve himself from oversight and responsibility for the SRP process. {Ex 111,
Ex 61:16-18) : :

Specifically concerning Lt Col |l Brig Gen Veillon testified he was .
recommended for non-retention because he met the criteria in the ANGI and there was a need to

B 'éfééié‘ﬁﬁﬁéfd‘fﬁéﬁiﬁty‘f&'ﬁﬁéjiiﬁiaf officers. He stated after L Col [N 1d officially

retired and several months prior to his Mar-10 interview with SAF/IGS he was informed by his
staff an error had been made and Lt Col |EREMN should not have met the 2008 SRB because
he was on an extended Active Duty tour. (Ex 61:20-25)
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en Veillon should have been aware of Col

. .| when the SRB met. According to the
AN GI ata minimur, had Col B recommended Lt Col . | for non-retention, an
NGB Form 27 would have been completed and Lt Col (] would have signed it,
acknowledging he was beingrecommended for-non-retention. This NGB Form 27 would then
have been included in his board package. The NGB Form 27 is optional (at the discretion of
TAG) when the individual is recommended for retention. As a result, if ANGI procedures were
followed, Col | l| recommendation for retention would have been apparent cither on an
NGB Form 27, if required by the TAG, or by the absence of it. According to Capt | the
individual that prepares all materials for the annual SRB for the LAANG, the LAANG follows
the ANGI guidelines for conduct of SRBs and it would have been procedure to include Col

[ 1 recommendation in Lt Col & 1l record package. (Ex 74:3-5; Ex 29:23-26) Asa
result Brig Gen Veilton’s statement he would not be aware of a commander’s retention
recommendation and supporting-documentation is assessed as not credible.

7 A review of ANGI 36-2606 mdicates Br

Based on Col i £ recollection the i mcommg recozmnendaton to the SRB concerning
Lt Col was for non-retention, Col (L0 testified she recommended he be retained;
§ testified he forwarded Col E s retennon recommendation to JFHQ; and Col.

testified concerning the SRB process Thetefore the preponderance of evidence indicates
Bng Gen Veillon initiated the non-retention recommendation. It is consideied likely the other
‘members of the board believed the recommendation originated with Col [ and did not
question it and MG Landrenean approved the board’s tecommendations as.submitted. No
testimony or other evidence was obtained to indicate otherwise. Asa result, the preponderance
of evidence indicates Brig Gen Veillon was the decisive factor in Lt Col
recommendation for non-retenhon by the 2008 SRB and selectxon for non-retention by TAG

It is important to note that Col B, Col B, and Capt g | all stated it was the
normal course of action for the SRB to support commander recommendations for retention/non-
retention. Col [iaa and Col also indicated it would be unusual for the SRB to

recommend an individual for non-retention when a commander had recommended otherwise.

" (Bx 32:25-26; Ex 22:21-22; Ex 29:24) Thus the easiest way.to ensure the SRB recommended Lt

Col B for non-retention was to ensure the incoming recommendation was for non-

retention.

Concerning Brig Gen Veillon’s testimony that Lt Col | was recommended for
non-retention for force management and no other reasons, the reponderance of evidence as cited -
above in festimony by ‘Col , and Col 5
section-indicates otherwise and that Bng Gen Velllon s perception that Lt Col [
interacted with the Adjutant-General’s Nommatlon Committee was a factor | in his actions.
Consequently, it is concluded Lt Col
required by ANGI 36-2606, paragraph 1.3.4.. As a result, the preponderance of evidence
indicates not only was Brig Gen Veillon the decisive factor in Lt Col [
but also that he-abused his authonty in so doing by not acting within the authomy of the
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regulation governing the SRP process subsequently resulting in an action adversely affecting Lt
Cot IR | |

~ Onhis behalf and during his testimony, Brig Gen Veillon read a copy of an email
purportedly authored by Co! ] as part of the general’s preparation for his SAF/IGS
interview. This email provided details on perspnngl moves that supposedly were made possible
as a result of Lt Col h non-retention. It is important to note Brig Gen Veillon did not
later provide a copy of this email to SAF/IGS as requested and the information in it was not
corroborated or offered by Col - in his independent testimony. Regardless of the question
of validity of this document, it is assessed this information was provided to help justify Brig Gen
Veillon’s actions. (Ex 61:22-23)

Furthermore on his behalf and as previously detailed, Brig Gen Veillon testified he was
informed Lt Col JJJJEIEE should not have been considered by the SRB after Lt Col [N
had ofﬁmally retired and by then it was too late to alter the non-retention decision. He also
provided copies of documents retated to two Congressional Inquiries from the Honorable David
Vitter, United States Senator from Louisiana, as further support both he and MG Landreneau had
acted within the guidelines of the ANGI. Brig Gen Veillon’s statements on this point are
inconsistent with those of other witnesses and are assessed as further evidence of the
questionable credibility of Brig Gen Veillon’s testimony concerning this allegation. Col | N
indicated she’d raised the issue up the chain of command prior fo Lt Col return from
deployment in Nov 08 and Col - indicated he’d briefed both Brig Gen Veillon and MG
Landreneau about the mistake prior to Lt Col retirement. (Ex 40:3; Ex 22:43-44)
Furthermore, copies of documents provided by Brig Gen Veitlon also indicated LANG -
leadership was aware of the issue prior to Lt Col h official retirement on 30 Mar 09, As
noted on a 16 Dec 09 letter from Senator Vitter, his office had filed a follow-up inquiry with the
LANG on 13 Mar 09 which included a letter from Lt Col dated 4 Feb 09 outlining
why he believed he was non-retained, as well as outlining the provisions of ANGI 36-2606 he
believed exempted him from consideration from the 2008 SRP process, (Ex 98:56-57)

Taking the above information and applying the “acid test” for abuse of authority we have:

Q1. Did the responsible management official’s (RMO’s) actions either:

a. Adversely affect any person? {(e.g., demotlon referral OPR, extra duty, etc)
or
b. Result in personal gain or advantage to the RMO? (e.g., promotion, award, etc.)

Al, Yes, Lt Col JJlll being recommended and then selected to be non-retained in the
LAANG adversely affected him. It did not necessarily result in personal gain for Brig
Gen Veillon.!” ‘

. " But sea footnote 14
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Q2. Did the RMO act within the authority granted under applicable regulations, law or
policy? . '

A2, Yesand No, as Board President, Brig Gen Veillon had-the authorityto vote for Lt
Col | non-retention; he did not have the authority to change the wing commander’s

-recommendation for retention.

Q3. Was the action arbitra:y and capricious:

A2, Yes, Brig Gen Veillon’s action was arbitrary and capricious.

a. Reasons — the preponderance of the evidence indicates the non-retention selection was
based on Lt Col (R talking to the Nominating Committee. '

b. Reasonableness — this reason is not reasonable as recommendations and selections
under this program are fo be for force management reasons. :

c. Consistent with past practice — this action is not consistent with the past practice of
‘basing decisions on force management considerations. ’ :

d. Motive — the preponderance of the evidence indicates it to be retribution.

‘CONCLUSION,

By a preponderance of evidence, based upoﬁ the findings of fact and sworn tesﬁmony,
the allegation that Btig Gen Joseph B. Veillon abused his authority as defined by AFI 90-301,

_ Inspector General Complaints Resolution, 15 May 08, by wrongfully directing inclusion of a

subordinate-member on.a list of members of the Louisiana Adir National Guard selected for non-
retention, in violation of ANGI 36-2606, Selective Refention of 4 ir National Guard Qfficer and
FEnlisted Personnel, 26 Feb 97, was SUBSTANTIATED. '
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ALLEGATION 10. That Brig Gen Joseph B. Veillon reprised against the complainant,
in violation of 10 United States Code, Section 1034 (10 U.S. C 1034) Mlztary Whlsfleblower
Protection Act, by removmghlmfrom his position as the SIS b of the
Louisiana -Air National Guard and assigning him to non-ﬂymg dut1es in response to multiple -
protected communications. :

* Additional Background This alle atlon addresses one of four issues raised by the
original complainant in this case, Maj i i B The additional background that
follows is somewhat complex, lengthy, and multl-faceted but 1mporta.nt in understanding when,
how, and why certain events occurred. With an intent to focus on information most directly
related to the stated allegation, it also does not attempt to encompass all the side issues,
conjecture, and hearsay that was offered by various witnesses interviewed.

In his complaint, Maj | KRR asserted Brig Gen Veillon directed and/or took the
adverse personnel actions listed in the allegation above as a result of his protected

communications with varied individuals in his chain of command, including Brig Gen Veillon,
uhmnatm with emails sent on 6 and 7 Sep 08 to Lt Col L Lt Col |1
and Col (Ex 114:18-26; Ex 18 1) prov1d1ng

information on the negative performance and absence of Lit Col , a pilot in the
159 OSF C-130 program. (As previously mentioned, the 159 OSF is a flight assigned to the 159
OG and pait of the 159 FW, all located at NAS-JRB New Orleans.) In addition, Maj
asserted Brig Gen Veillon’s actions against him may have been influenced by role on
a steering committee, which recommended removal of MG Landreneau as the Adjutant General,

(Ex 1)

Maj JI jcined the LAANG in Apr 99 and became the
I i1 D<c 07 when the previous director, Lt Col [l returned to his civilian position
as-a pilot with a commercial airline and transitioned back to fraditional guardsman status. Maj
was known by many in the LAANG long before this, both as a resultof

~ long-time service in the LAANG culminating as the Assistant Adjutant General for Air, LANG

and Commander of the LAANG, as well as longer-term relationships that existed between the
deGeneres family and other families in the LANG. As an example, during his testimony, Lt Col
mentioned he had known the family for years as they came from the same
hometown and stated he considered Maj a “pretty close friend.” He also indicated
Maj had gone to school with his sister-in-law. Maj JJNJJJJll confirmed this
relationship and mentioned Lt Col || had met him at the door when he came to take Lt Col
sister-in-law to a high sohool prom. Similarly, Lt Col , the other
long-time pilot in the C-130 program, indicated he’d known Maj for many years,
stating, “I knew him from when he was little, we used to go fishing,” (Ex 112; Ex 18:2-3; Ex
67:2,7, 9, 14; Ex 34:1, 2 6)

When hé became the [ - V2] _ was placed in a very
difficult sifuation. Not only was he a captam placed in charge of a small group of individuals
66

1t will not Ryreleased {in whole or in part), reproduced, or given
he inspector general channels without prior approval

AF/IG) or designee.

This is a protected documeé

000068 of 000092



b6
b7¢

most of whom had known each other for many years and had developed close relationships with .
each other (to include across rank and officer/enlisted lines) and had significantly more military
experience than he, but he was also placed in posmon of leadership over much more senior
officers -- the same officers who had known Maj § | as a child and teenager.
Understandably this created a difficult dynamic and enwronment within which Maj deGenetes

was tasked to lead.”

" To make the situation more complicated, according fo both Lt Col
B ot the time of the incident leading to the cornplaint and the lowest-level commander

respon31b1e for the C-130 program, and Col = 1 at the time, the C-130 ;
program was in turmoil at the time of Lt Col epartur and h: d not been well led.
Both indicated theré were significant m: .
absent from work. According to Lt Col
occasions by the vice-wing commander and had

absence. Lt Col BB described Lt Col [ mis
that probably affected the overall professionalism of the unit. And agam, I’d say competent but

lacking direction. And definitely not being utilized in the fashion that it was designed and
funded for.” (Ex 68:3) Col [l voiced similar negative comments concerning Lt Col

3, primarily concerning his poor management and character as well as his frequent
absence from work, and stated he had discussed Lt Col J& Bl poor performance with Brig
Gen Veillon in Apr 08. Co! [l mentioned Lt Col was also a negative influence on
the professionalism and performance of the shop, pointing ouf, “Monsour was a min run type
guy.” (Ex 68:1-3; Ex 9:1, 6, 14; Ex 10:6) Lt Col i _ t the time, also expressed
d1ssatlsfact10n with Lt Col performance and mdmated he ad administered several
- ' _ 1| not only for absence from work but'also for a range of other
fallures to perfoi, (Ex 56:5) While the C-130 program-was able-to-execute tasked missions,
wing’ leadershxp believed a eulture change was needed. (Ex31:4)

While the above’ dynamlcs were known by the OSF, operations group, and wing
commanders at the time, each felt Maj g % was the best individual for the job, though
admittedly there were not many other choices. As Col BRI described it, “we felt like ER
could, could get us over the hump and tum the C-130 shop into a little bit more of a professzonai
type of a'shop ... like the-fighter squadron and the 0G.” Additionally winig-and group leadership

~. believed with their support, Maj deGeneres would do well (Ex 68:4-5; Ex 9 16 17; Ex31:5-6)

Following Maj B asmgnment as Col

_ indicated the climate within the shop improved immensely, describing the improvements as, “in

for work, people getting the job done, just a more professional atmosphere.”
indicated he often visited the shop and it appeared to him the program
: | stated no one from the sh had ised
performance in the-aireraft or EEEES
-and assignment to non-ﬂymg

people showing up
(Ex 9:-15) Lt Col i
was running well. Both Lt Col
any issues concerning Maj i
'  prior to the events which led to his removal as
dutxes (Ex 9:15, 18; Ex 68:4, 28-29)
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Ma;j BB confirmed he was given guidance by his flight and group commanders to

tighten things up within the C-130 program and establish a more professional work ethic. (Bx

18:2) It is understandable, if not expected given the context described above, Maj

faced difficulty and/or resistance in enacting change. Col |l indicated he anticipated this
and held conversations with the more senior C-130 pilots (Lt Col | ¥ and Lt Col
to help ameliorate the supervisory issues created by having a captain/major as their program
director. Despite these conversations, Co! SR assessed there was still resentment by those
individuals, especially as Maj | EESINER began to turn the shop around. (Ex 9:15-17) .

Me; IR indicated a number of issues arose during his assignment as the |

IR 2. that he normally dealt with them at his level. However, he stated several issues

arose between Dec 07 and Aug 08 that he not only discussed with the individuals involved but
also documented in memoranda for record (MFRs) and discussed with his superiors in the

. command chain. Testimony of various members of the chain of command up to and including

Col IENRERERR. - !idatcd these communications; however, no evidence was obtained
indicating Brig Gen Veillon was aware of these prior to his removal of Maj | NS from his
position, A review of these communications determined they met the criteria for protected
communications as defined by 10 U.S.C. 1034 and they are included in the following
Chronology section. In his complaint, Maj B 2!lcged Brig Gen Veillon’s adverse action
against him was at least in some way a result of these protected communications. (Ex 1; Ex
17:17) ' : :

In late Aug/early Sep 08, the LAANG was activated to conduct disaster response
operations in support of Hurricane Gustav. The C-130 and associated aircrew ﬁ
h of Maj were actively participating in the effort. During the course of those
opetations, Maj sent an email concerning Lt Co! [ to Lt Col '
that became the impetus for Maj i vemoval from his position and assignment
to non-flying duties. This email was a follow-up communication to Lt Col [l request for an

update on C-130 operations, including a request for information on personnel accountability, and
is found at Exhibit 114, pages 19 and 20. (Ex 16:17-18; Ex 56:18-19) In short, Maj [ HNNNEEEE

_email provided details on Lt Col | N activities since repoiting for Hurricane Gustav

disaster-response operations and also cited misconduct on the part of Lt Col I for not
participating in unit activities for the 7 months prior to his activation (resulting in his loss of C-
130 flight qualifications) and intentionally avoiding ORI and Standardization Evaluation
Inspection preparation and/or support, Maj also expressed his dissatisfaction with
defending and/or covering for Lt Col poor performance in the past. (Ex 114: 19-20)

Though he denied it during his testimony to-SAF/IGS, other evidence obtained indicated

, after receiving the email from Maj NI, showed it to Lt Co! [EEMEEER and Lt
and elicited feedback, (Bx 56:33; Ex 67:13; BEx 34:3; Ex 50:15) Both Lt Col

and Lt Col RS were extremely upset by Maj [INKIERERG statements. As Lt Col

recalled: . ‘
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_seemed most upsetting to them was that Maj

Brig Gen Veillon and later faxed him a cop

1o
h7¢

“ Whlle the investigation of this allegation did not require determining

. possibly served one UTA. This timeframe cojricides with the 7 months Maj B

it was almost like finding out your wife’s cheatmg on you, I mean I was just, I was
shocked I was absolutely shocked, M ttor fact, I got that e-mail on a Saturday night I
believe it was, | tatked to him [Maj [ ] that Saturday morning on the phone and
he was at-home in Baton Rouge . And, you know, we, we talked for thirty minutes on .
the phone and he was jHSt as nice and you know, man if there’s anything we can do, find
out if your son’s house is okay and like nothing was wrong. He never once told me
anything was wrong. (Bx 67:15)

BB interviews with SAR/IGS, what
had sent-an-e-mail concerning Lt Col
performance and attendance up the chain of command -- not whether or not the .

During both Lt Col

'contents of the e-mails were accurate

Subsequent to his recetvmg a copy of the emaxl LtCol B testtﬁed he contacted
; of the document. (Ex 67 28) Brig Gen Veillon set
concerns. Present at the meetmg were Brig

a meeting for 14 Sep

08 to address Lt Col
Gen Veilton, Col g

(Fx 3115-18; Ex 16:51; Bx3731)

While the recollections of the individuals attending the meeting were somewhat vague
concermng the specifics of the d1scu531on, they were generally consistent with each other and
] p enerally a restaternent of what he included in the

' cﬁs’Cusszon ecarhe very heated, especially on the part of Lt Co

and at one point, both individuals informed Brig Gen-Veillon they would not fly with Maj '
B\ ccording to multiple individuals, there were several side discussions with the
ofﬁcer air¢rew members as well as a discussion between Brig Gen Veillon and the other
leadershlp members on how to proceed. At the end of the meeting, Brig Gen Veillon informed

the accuracy of information on Lt Col

B octivities provided in the 6 and 7 Sep 08 e-mails from Maj BB, cvidence obtained indicates it was
generally correct, At his own admission, Lt Col B was “scarce” between Jan 08 and Aug.08, recalling that he
B mentions that Lt Col

did not show at the unit, Concerning guidance from Col @ about upcoming inspections, while Lt Col
telling him he did not need to be there for the actual inspections, his recollection of
other guidance on the subject was vague. (Bx 67:19-21) According to Col BEEEES, Lt Col B ond Maj
deGeneres, Lt Col | was asked to schedule bis retrammg for his airline position to snable him to support
preparation for upcoming inspections as weli as to participate in ubit UTAs once his airline training was complete

Evidence presented indicated he intentionally did not comply with that request. (Bx 18:1; Ex 10:5; Ex 56:33) It is
i performance and impact on-the C-130 prog

important to note Maj i assessment of Lt Col | :
his own assessment and he was entitled to those within his authority-and responsibilities as the |
is also important to note the performance issues Maj raised in the emails are consistent
with Lt Col  performance as cited by other members of the 159 FW chain of command and as previously

discussed in this report.
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B he was temporarily removing him from his position as | R
BB and assigning him to non-flying duties pending outcome of a Commander D:rected
Inqulry (CDD). (Bx 31:16-21; Bx 67:29, 32-36; Ex 16:21-24; Ex 34:18-24; Ex 37:31-34)

It is important o note that according to Co! RS, Lt Co! SRR seemed the most
agitated of all involved at the meeting. (Ex 37:33) Though other attendees did not seem to recall
it, Lt Col indicated during a side discussion between himself, Brig Gen Veillon, Col
, and Col that he raised a number of fiustrations he had developed with Maj
over the years and cited those along with the 6 and 7 Sep e-mails as reasons he
threatened to-quit if ordered to fly with Maj . (Ex 34:21-24) Regardless of the
validity of Lt Col stated frustrations, much of which appear to be based on opinion,
innuendo, conjecture, and difficult to verify information, his predominant issue with Maj
and reason for threatening to quit if ordered to fly with him appeared to be that Maj
elevated issues about misconduct by Lt Col |EEREMN up the chain of cornmand rather
than keep that information “in house” within the confines of the individuals in the C-130

- program. As Lt Col Il admitted about the e-mails, “I was never so pissed in my twenty-

five years in the rmhtary,” and subsequently felt he could no longer trust Maj - (Bx
34:13,32-33)

Both Lt Co! | 2nd Lt Col N behavior at the 14 Sep 08 meeting appears
mutinous and placed Brig Gen Veillon in a difficult spot given the perceived importance of
continuing to fly the C-130 in support of disaster response operations. Essentially, both
individuals refused to fly with Maj Il because of distrust resulting from his elevation of
issues up the chain of command about an individual he was responsible for, something well
within Maj B avthority, responsibility, and obligation to do as

Following the 14 Sep meeting, Maj [ IESENE vas assigned to non-flying duties at the
159 FW command post. On 18 Sep, Brig Gen Veillon direcied a Commander Inquiry into the
culture and operations of the C-130 detachment. He appomted Lt Col R s the
investigating officer. Lt Col |JJJllll conducted the inquiry and completed his report, dating it 24 -
Oct 08; the legal review was dated 18 Dec 08. (Ex 115:1, 5-6) Maj h filed his
complaint 'with the LANG Inspector General on 6. Dec 08.

CHRONOLOGY.

1 Dec 07

Maj (then Capt) assigned as [ o
. (Ex 113) '
{ Maj began S-year AGR assxgmnent (Ex 87)
Teleconference occurred between Brig Gen Veillon and Col -
regarding propased C-130 mission to Andrews AFB. Issue raised that :

1 Apr 08
15 Apr 08
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tasked mission did not meet AFI criteria. Maj |
dlSCllSSlon (Ex 113:1; Ex 31:6-7, Ex 9:7-8). [Protected Commumcanon]

17 Apr 08
general Maj | prevmus hlghhght of AF I gmdance was to ensure
leadership had information needed to make informed dec1310ns (Ex 113:1;
Ex 9:7-8; Ex 68:18)
23 Apr 08 Bng Gen Veillon directed assessment of C- 130 program. (Bx114:8; Ex
.| Veillon, Bng Gen Soileay, and Col .
25 Jun 08 | Brig Gen Veillon signed a memorandum directing a cha.nge of chaxn of

command for the C-130 Operations Sections, placing the section directly

b6
h7c

8 Jul 08
xeported or a ﬂlght appearmg to be under the mﬂuence of alcohol and in
violation of applicable AFIs. (Ex 115:91; Ex 68:16; Ex 9:6) {Protected
Communlcatwn]

2528 Jul-| Maj | "

08
for the C- 130 program was not in comphance with apphcabie AFIs, Maj

aigs documented these dlSCUSSLOHS in memora.nda for xecord (Bx

12-13 Aug riefed (at separate times) Lt Col [ :

08 Lt Co |, on an incident in which he assessed a C—130
aircrew member s owed for flight duty still under the influence of alcohol
in violation of applicable AFIs. Maj | 1 documented these .
discussions in memoranda for record. (Ex 115:93; Ex 68:16 ) [Protected
Communication]

Late Aug | LANG activated to conduct dzsaster r33ponse operations in support of

08 . | Hurricane Gustav. (Ex 114:16-19; Ex 31:11-16; Ex 115: 96)

1 Sep 08 | Gustav lands on Louisiana Coast

6-7 Sep 08 | Maj B | sent series of two emails concerning
recent activity in support of the LAANG to Lt Col § as
requested. (Bx 114:18-20; Ex 16:46). [Protected Commumcatxon]

7 Sep 08 | Saints play home game in Superdome beatmg Tampa Bay Buccaneers

13.Sep 08 ’ dand

asked for his extplanation of the information Maj
i subsequently showed the documents to Lt Col |

This is @ protected documeRg
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'(Ex 67:25-28; Ex 34:3-5; Ex 10:1)
14 Sep 08 | Lt Col - contacted Brig Gen-Veillon and expressed his anger over
the contents of the above emails, Lt Col [N forwarded a copy of the
emails to the general. (Ex 67:28)
14'Sep 08 | Brig Gen Veillon held a meeting to address the subject email and issues

: within the C-130 program. (Ex 113:2; Ex 16:21-22, 53-54; Ex 31:15-21; Ex
37:32-33, Ex 67:33-38; Ex 34:5-13) ‘
Brig Gen Veillon removed Maj IR from his duties as the [ |
_ and assigned him to non-flying duties and directed a
Commander Inquiry into the climate within the C-130 program. (Ex 62:20-
'23; Ex 63:1-10) [Adverse Personnel Action]
18 Sep 08 | Brig Gen Veillon formally directed a “Commander Inquiry into the culture
and operations of the Louisiana C-130 detachment.” Lt Col
- | appointed to conduct inquiry. (Ex 115:6)
Between | Commander Inquiry completed. Brig Gen Veillon 1ndeﬁmtel extended
18 Dec 08 | Maj _(;1 removal from duties as the
and 20 and assignment to non-flying duties. (Ex 115:1-5; Ex 113:3; Ex 63:11-16;
Feb 09' | Bx 46:4) [Adverse Personnel Action]

14 Sep 08

FINDINGS OF FACT.

"« Between 15 Apr 08 and 7 Sep 08, Maj - raised or discussed with supérior

h&
b7c

members of his chain of command a minimum of five incidents, events, or situations in
which he believed Air Force or other guldance was v1olated [Protected

Communications] .

* Oné6and 7 Sep 08, Maj
concerning and assessing Lt Col
This assessment was requested by Lt Col

¢ On13 Sep 08, Lt Col showed Lt Col a copy of the above emails.

‘¢ On the morning of 14 Sep 08, Lt Col contacted Brig Gen Veillon to discuss the
contents of the above emails and later forwarded a copy of the documents to the general.
¢ Atthe erid of 2 meeting on 14 Sep 08 called and led by Brig Gen Veillon to address the

sent two emails to Lt Col
recent activity in support of the LAANG.
. [Protected Communications]

above emails and Lt Col concerns, Brig Gen Veillon removed Maj
as and assigned him fo non-flying duties.- [Adverse
Personnel Action]

e On 18 Sep 08, Brig Gen Veillon directed Lt Col | conduct a “Commanders -
* Inquiry into the culture and operations of the Louisiana C-130 detachment.”

¥ Exact date CDI was completed and Brig Gen Veillon directed extension of actions agamst Maj —
unable to be determined and verified.
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e Approximately 20 Feb 09, Brig Gen Veillon indefinife
_removal from duties as the

extended Maj b
and assignment to non-flying

dutics. [Adverse Personnel Action]

Important Notes. The following general 6bse;'§/ations and assessments are provided to

highlight points not otherwise covered in the previous sections, They are derived from a macto
view of the documentation and testimony obtained or provided during the course of the
investigation and includes investigating officer assessments of personal interactions with the
individuals involved. It should be understood these notes are not all encompassing of other
issues identified or raised during the investigation but are those assessed as most relevant to the

b6
b7¢c

-of Brig Gen (tet) deGeneres’ role on

~ analysis that follows. -

Multiple individuals within the leadership chain of the LAANG indicated it was widely
expected Brig Gen Veillon would take adyerse action against Maj ] asaresult
the Adjutant General’s Nomination Committee.
Prior to Lt Col {88 release of Ma 6 and 7 Sep 08 emails concerning Lt
Col b | performance to Lt Col § 1 1o one from within thé C-130 program
indicated they had identified any issues within the program or amongst personnel -
assigned to the program to higher level superiors (other than those previously cited and as -
raised by Maj EEBE G.) Superiors in the chain of command, to include Brig Gen
Veillon, assessed the program was running smoothly and were unaware of y significant
issues (other than those previousl ited and as addressed by Maj B )
Lt Col | B release of Maj B 6 and 7 Sep 08 emails concerning Lt Col

B | performance [protected communications] to Lt Col FRETIE ] triggered a highly
emotional response from Lt Col S towards Maj B . Lt Col o
subsequently shared the contents of those emails with other crewmembers and evoked
their support, triggering similar emotional responses from those individuals.

Neither Brig Gen Veillon or Lt Col | (during the Commander Inquiry) appear to
have addressed the issue of Lt Col EIY rele Mo 1 protected
communications to Lt Col FEREEE as inappropriate nor was Lt Col & 8] consulted prior
to or present during the 14 Sep 08 meeting called by Brig Gen Veillon to discuss those
emails and their contents. o :
No factual anelysis appeared to have been completed concerning the accuracy of the
information Maj JBi8 S included in the 6 and 7 Sep 08 emails, though much hearsay
and conjecture was presented.

'During both Commander Inquiry testimony and testimony .obtained as part of this

investigation, the majority of C-130 aircrew members were adamant in stating they did
not want to fly again with Maj B Gue to a lack of trust, This lack of trust.
appeared to be based primarily on the point that Maj had elevated and -
addressed issues concerning them with superior officers-in the chain of command ... not
on the major’s flying abilities or his leadership and/or management style. In other words,
the other members of the C-130 program no longer trust Maj 8| because he did
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not keep issues “in house.” Also, the other aircrew membets ap eared 1o have reassessed
and reinterpreted évents and interactions concerning Maj d that occurred prior to
the 6 and 7 Sep 08 emails in a way that would justify their negative views towards the
major.

Some information obtamed indicated the C-130 aircrew members coilaborated on
information provided to Brig Gen Veillon at the 14 Sep 08 meeting, to Lt Col i
during the conduct of the Commander Inquiry, and to this investigation. In addition,
several senior members in the LAANG cham of command assessed this to have occurred

- as well,

Some information obtained indicated various C-130 aircrew members fabricated events
and documentation concerning Maj which reflected adversély on him and did
50 in retribution for his 6 and 7 Sep 08 emails concerning Lt Col '

Some information obtained indicated various C-130 aircrew members either attributed
adverse comments to Maj JESMMMN Which they did not hear him niake or embellished
on those they did hear.

Overall, Maj appeared open, honest, and direct during testimony provided
during this investigation. Copies of MFRs of prior events, incidents, and issues he
provided were assessed as written at the time the events occurred and assessed as
providing his perceived record of the details of those events,

The overall tenor and tone of the other C-130 aircrew members observed during
testimony obtained during this investigation indicated these individuals were in some

. cases either withholding information relevant to the investigation or providing

information which they knew not to be accurate. As a result, the credibility of the
testimony of the C-130 aircrew members (other than Maj } was assessed as
questionable,

Lt.Col - the officer appointed to conduct the Commander hlqmry, allowed himself
to become biased against Maj at the beginning of his inquiry and prior to
interviewing the other members of the C-130 program. This bias deveioped during an
initial interview when Maj shared documentation of various events and
incidents that had occumred within the C-130 program. As Lt Col put it, he found
it “appathng” someone would keep such documentation. Lt Col appeared to
overlook the issue that various individuals violated Air Force guidance in the
performance of their duties, During the course of his interviews with other C-130
aircrew members, Lt Col |l shared information about the above documents, further
inflaming the situation. (Ex 16; Ex 17; Ex 67; Ex 34; Ex 33; Ex 36; Ex 35; Ex 31; Ex 37;
Ex 45; Ex 46; Ex 56; Ex 30; Ex 68; Ex 50)

STANDARDS.

The standardé for reprisal have been previously detailed under Allegation 3 of this report

and can be reviewed there as needed,
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| of any of the protected communications made by Maj

ANALYSIS. The answers to the test for reprisal follow:

1. Did the memf:_er make or prepare a communication protected by statute? Yes

As previously cited and validated, between 15 Apr 08-and 7 Sep 08, Maj | &
raised or discussed with superior members of his chain of command a minimum of five
incidents, events, or situations in which he believed Air Force or other guidance was violated.
As a result, these communications meet criteria as protected communications.

2. Was an unfavorable personnel action taken or threatened, or was a favorable action
withheld or threatened to be withheld following the protected communication? Yes

- As previously cited, Brig Gen Veillon temporarily removed Maj
position as i B 204 assigned him to non-flying dut
following the series of emails [Protected Communications] Maj . :
of Lt Col Bl on 6 and 7 Sep 08 concerning the performance of Lt Colgll &
previously cited, on approximately 20 Feb 09, Brig Gen Veillon indefinitely extended the
petsonnel actions against Maj [EGREE following completion of a Commander’s Inquiry
conducted by Lt Co! SRR Removal of Maj [ from his position and assignment to
non-flying duties meets the criteria as an adverse personnel action as detailed in DoDD 7050.6
(previously outlined in this report under Allegation 3.) '

3

No confirmed evidence was presented or obtained indicating Brig Gen Veillon was aware
prior to the 6 and 7 Sep 08
emails excepting conversations he had directly with Brig Gen Veillon about the legality of
certain C~130 missions. Likewise, no confirmed evidence was presented or obtained indicating
the protected communications Maj [ i made prior to 6 Sep 08 directly caused
adverse personnel actions against the major. However, evidence does indicate Maj §
conversations with Brig Gen Veillon may have influenced Brig Gen Veillon’s reaction to the
protected communications of 6 dand 7 Sep 08.2° Nonetheless, the remaining analysis for reprisal
is mainly focused on the Maj [ SGIREE protected communications of 6 and 7 Sep 08 and the

events that followed.

3. Did the ofﬁcial(s) responsible for taking, withholding, or thfeatening the personnel

" action know about the protected communication? Yes

As Assistant Adjitant General for Air, LANG, Brig Gen Veillon meets the criteria as an
RMO ss cited as he is in a position which influences, recommends, approves, reviews, or
indorses actions taken against individuals within the LAANG.

» Dyiscussed further in part 4 of Reprisal Acid Test under subheading entitled Motive.
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Tn addition, for the initial, temporary removal of Maj [ N from his position and
assignment to non-flying duties, Col S, Co! [N, and Col JgIER] all meet the criteria as

- an RMO as they advised and concurred with Brig Gen Veillon on the personnel action taken.

As previously-cited, all four of the above individuals were éwa.re, of the protected
communications prior to Brig Gen Veillon’s direction of the adverse actions against Maj

Concerning Brig Gen Veillon’s decision to indefinitely extend the actions against Maj
| Brig Gen Veillon testified he made that decision as a result of the recommendations

 of the Commander Inquiry. While evidénce indicated Brig Gen Veillon discussed his decision

with Brig Gen Soileau, it did not appear Brig Gen Soilean influenced the decision; thus Brig Gen
Soileau was not c_onsidered an RMO. (Bx 63:11) .

4. Does the evidence establish that the personnel action(s) would have been taken,
withheld, or threatened if the protected communication had not been made? No (to both adverse
actions —~ temporary and permanent removal) :

As previously cited in the Additional Background and Chronology sections related to this -
allegation, Maj ﬁ protected communications to Lt Col [Jlll] and Lt Col |l release
of those documents to Lt Col JJJJJJll initiated the events leading to Brig Gen Veillon’s actions
against Maj JJJJJJqll. During his testimony, Brig Gen Veillon repeated several times that prior
to receiving the telephone call from Lt Col ISR on 14 Sep 08, he was unaware of any
significant issues among the C-130 aircrew members. Brig Gen Veillon also stated that to his
knowledge the C-130 program had been running fairly smoothly prior to the onset of operations
supporting Hurricane Gustav relief efforts and he was not considering any adverse action against
Maj I (Bx 63:1-5; Ex 62:17) No other evidence provided or obtained during the

course of this investigation suggested otherwise. It appears had it not been for the protected
communications and the release of those communications by RMOs in‘Maj ﬂ chain of
command to Brig Gen Veillon, Brig Gen Veillon would not have taken adverse personnel action
against Maj ﬁ, both temporarily or permanently. ' :

Unlike in the previous analyses for reprisal which did not require finther analysis of the
following five related questions to determine reprisal, the full analysis is necessary and provided
below for this allegation:

(1) Reasons stated by the responsible official for taking, withholding, or threatening the
action;

(2) Reasonableness of the action taken, withheld, or threatened considering the
complainant’s performance and conduct;

(3) Consistency of the actions of responsible management officials with past practice;
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(4) Motive of the responsible management ofﬁelal for deciding, takmg, or wathholdmg
the personnel action; .

(5) Procedural correctuess of the action.
The answers to the above questions follow:

I.  Reasons stated by the respon81b1e official for takmg, withholding, or threatening the
‘action.

a. The Temporary Removal from his job: Brig Gen Veillon stated he made this decision
because of the need to form a crew to fly-C-130 missions in support of Hurricane
Gustav disaste; e operations and because the other pilots stated they wouldn’t
ﬂy with Maj [ , which if forced to fly could lend itself to a potentxal safety

issue. (Ex 63-7)

b, The Permanent Removal from his joby: Brig Gen Veillon stated he made this decrsron
because of his reliance on the CDIL reconnnendatlons of Lt Col i ] in which Lt
Col B { described Maj B B lack of loyalty as a commander both above
and below in the chain of command as the cause of two crew members refusing to fly
with him, Lt Col [f] recommended Maj § | should have the opportunity
to continue his flying career elsewhere

b6
b7¢

2. Reasonableness of the action taken, w1thheld or threatened con31dermg the

complamant’s performance and conduct.

a. Temporary Removal from his job: Brig Gen Veillon stated he knew he was in a véry
difficult position in taking action against Maj | | but felt he had no other
. choice at the time because of the need to form a crew to fly C-130 missions in support
of Hurricane Gustav dlsaster response operatlons and because the other pxlots stated

However, the ev1dence indicated Brig Gen Veillon had several other non-reprlsal
choices he could-have made which would not have further encouraged a “mutiny” but
rather calmed the situation. These other reasonable solutions indicate the action to
temporarily remove Maj 2 .
indicated in the chronology section of this allegation, Gustav hit the Louisiana coast
late August 2008, The evacuation operat1ons were already completed by 1 Sep08.
(The Saints played a regular.season game in the Superdome on 7 Sep 08 beating the
Tampa Bay Buccaneets). The ensuing response operations at or about 14 Sep 08
were post operations which would allow Brig Gen Veillon flexibility and viable non-
reprisal options to include: 1) Brig Gen Veillon could have grounded the whole crew
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and requested supplemental support; 2) Brig Gen Veillon could have just grounded Lt
Col R o he was the only pilot at the time not-qualified to fly the C-130; 3)
Brig Gen Veillon could have hastened the arrival of the previously requested current
and qualified pilot/co-pilot from NGB CAT for Hurricane Post Ops. At the time of

" this decision, Brig Gen Veillon was aware from Maj JERENEE protected

communications that Maj had already made this official crew support
request because Lt Col was unqualified to fly. The evidence indicates Brig
Gen Veillon chose to act in a manner consistent and indicative of the “loyalty first or
you are out” culture practiced within the LAANG as mentioned in Allegation 1 of this

_ report. The preponderance of the evidence indicated Ma] SRR shared incidents,

situations, and events he believed violated of AF or other guidance with his superiors
and his chain of command, and because he did not keep those issues “in house” Maj
R <mporarily lost his job. The IO finds Brig Gen Veillon’s actions
unteasonable given the other reasonable alternatives available to Brig Gen Veillon
and as such in reprisal for Maj MR having made protected communications,

. - The Permanent Removal from his job: Relative to his decision to indeﬁrﬁtely extend

the temporary action against Maj |l Brig Gen Veillon indicated he made his
decision based on the recommendations of Lt Col [l in the Commander Inquiry,
testifying, “I took the report on its face value, Itook the recommendations of the
Investigating Officer. I don’t know what else I can do.” Brig Gen Veillon added that
had the recommendation been different, he would have followed that as well. (Ex
63:14-15) This simplistic view for an officer with Brig Gen Veillon’s experience and
time in service, coupled with weight of a permanent removal (firing), was found to be
incredible or not credible. As discussed in the chronology and important notes
section, SAF/IGS’s perusal of the CDI report immediately raised concerns over thie
conduct of the inquiry and identified bias on the part of the IO conducting it. Yet,
according to the testimony of inquiry officer, Brig Gen Veillon did not initially
request recommendations or findings or even discuss the report with him after it was
completed. (Ex30:30) Moreover, the CDI IO officer selected to flesh out the
“culture and opetations of the C-130 detachment” candidly testified to being
“appalled” by Maj NS “having kept documentation on the actions and conduct
of members under his direction,” The CDI IO’s apparent willingness to then inflame
an already emotional crew by telling and showing them Maj [N “2ppalling”
docurnentation and encouraging them to retroactively create their-own
documentation, illustrated his lack of impartiality in this matter. The IO finds that

. because Brig Gen Veillon accepted and acted solely on a significantly biased CDI in

order to permanently remove Maj [EENMEMEN from his position, the permanent
removal is unreasonable and in reprisal for making protected communications.

3. Consistency of the actions of responsible management officials with past practice.
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a. Temporary Removal; Unknown. Bﬁg Gen Veillon testified that he was not ever in
quite a similar situation, but believed he would have called 2 meeting and taken the
- gsame actions as executed above.

b. Permanent Removal: Same as above, and Brig Gen Veillon stated he would have
followed the recommendations of his.appointed investigating officer. However, the
evidence also indicates Brig Gen Veillon’s actions in this allegation are consistent
with his leadership practices, decisions and actions as substantiated and discussed in
Allegation 1. This may be summarized as follows: Brig Gen Veillon makes
leadership decisions based mostly on emotionally (Ex 22:17) developed personal
perceptions, with little deliberation or contemplation of policy or written guidance at
his disposal to assist him in making such decisions. Resultantly, his decisionsfactions
involving personnel issues are based, wholly or in part, on his sense of a :
subordinate’s loyalty to him personally, or as a General Officer. The preponderance
of the evidence indicates this type of leadership practice occurred in this instance to
M [EEBRERRY, costing him his job. ' .

4. Motive of the responsible management official for deciding, taking, or withholding the
personnel action.

a. Tempotary & Permanent Removal: The evidence supports two other reprisal-motives
" for Brig Gen Veillon’s temporary and subsequent permanent removal of Maj
_ from his position. The primary one previously disoussed is “disloyalty.”
However, additional credible evidence indicates that Brig Gen Veillon had been “put-

off* by Maj B £l “by the book” As
Maj B | attempted to instill a sense of professionalism into a program that his
superiors stated needed it, he pointed out many areas for improvement nd/or areas

that needed to get into compliance with standards and-policy. Maj (and
others) would advise Brig Gen Veillon of various operational issues that needed
attention. Brig Gen Veillon did not appear receptive to any modification to how he
wanted the C-130 utilized. (Bx 10:5; Ex 68:4) Maj | | pointed out several
instances wherein Brig Gen Veillon’s directed C-130 missions were eitherin
violation of an AFI o other NGB policy. Brig Gen Veillon did not appreciate the
passing up of this sort of information. The evidence indicates when Maj g 2l
asked 159 FW leadership to engage Brig Gen Veillon on his ‘behalf (0-6/0-5s
advising Brig Gen Veillon that certain missions could not be flown as he directed
because the miissions were not legal), Brig Gen Veillon removed the entire C-130
program from underneath the supervision of the flying wing and placed it under the
JFHQ, enabling him to task the C-130 directly through his JFHQ Director of
x 68:4-5; Ex 69:3) Finally, the “bad blood” motive generated by Maj [EE S
B orticipation on the Nominating Committee as evidenced in prior allegations
in this report cannot be overlooked or understated. The finding derived from all the
facts and evidence in this case indicate Brig Gen Veillon’s primary motive for both
79
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temporarily and permanently removing Maj [ | from his job was in reprisal
for making protected communications, not flight safety or mission necessity.

5. Procedural correctness of the action. The evidence indicated that Brig Gen Veillon, after
a heated discussion, dismissed Maj and others and told Lt Co! |l to stay .
behind. Lt Col was then dxsrmssed and Maj was called back in -
-alone, Brig Gen Veillon advised Maj i that althoughthls was tough, he was
removing Maj [EREEREE from flying status, his [EEEEERRRR:, and re-assigning
him non-flying duties at the Command Post. In and of 1tse1f these actions, although
detrimental to Maj career; are within the authority of Brig Gen Veillon to
take. However, the current testified that Maj must be placed into

‘a legitimate position within the Wing consistent with his AGR orders, or Maj h
must-move on to another position outside of the LAANG. (Ex 37:40) In short, Maj

“temporary” placement into the Command Post until the CDI was complete
was procedurally correct, but mamtauung him in that position after the CDI was

completed was not

Regardless of any m1t1gatmg, contributing, and related factors, the end result remains the
same -- the preponderance of evidence indicates Bng Gen Veillon directed adverse personnel
actions against Maj — because of the major’s protected communications concerning Lt

Co! [N

CONCLUSION.

By a preponderance of evidence, based upon the findings of fact and sworn testimony,
the allegation that Brig Gen Joseph B. Veillon reprised against the complainant, in violation of
10 United States Code, Section 1034 (10 U.S.C. 1034), Military Whistleblower Protection Act,
by removing him from his position as the of the Louisiana Air
National Guard and assigning him to non-flying duties in response to multiple protected
communications, was SUBSTANTIATED.
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VL. SUMMARY

~ ALLEGATION 1, that Brig Gen Joseph B. Veillon failed to exercise petsonal leadership
and be personally accountable for the Louisiana Air National Guard ethics program, as required
by DoD 5500.7-R, Joint Ethics Regulation, 23 Mar 06, para 1-404(a) and (b), by intimidating
and retaliating against members of his command who lawfully disclosed abuse, corruption,
violations of law or regulation, or conducted official duties that appeared contrary to his
individual interest, was SUBSTANTIATED.

o The preponderance of the evidence indicated Brig Gen Veillon’s leadership style and
decision making/execution were characterized by intimidation or retaliation against
subordinate commanders when they raised concerns about abuse and/or compliance with
formal AF or other guidance, or simply performed their duties in a way not to Brig Gen
Veillon’s liking. Additionally, the evidence reflected a lack of fairness and respect by
Brig Gen Veillon towards those leaders.

ALLEGATION 2, that Brig Gen Joseph B. Veillon directed and/or approved
émployment of an Active Guard Reserve resource funded by the National Guard Counterdrug
Support Program under 32 United States Code, Section 112 (32 U.S.C. 112), Drug Interdiction
and Counter—drug Activities, as a full-time Public Affairs Officer (PAO) for the Louisiana
National Guard, in violation of ANGI 10-801, National Guard Counterdrug Support, 29 Aug 08,
was SUBSTANTIATED.

‘o The preponderance of the evidence indicated Brig Gen Veillon directed the assignment
and did so with the knowledge it would be.in violation of the ANGI.

ALLEGATION 3, that Brig Gen Joseph B. Veiilon reprised against a subordinate

member, in violation of 10 United States Code, Section 1034 (10 U.S.C, 1034), Military

Whistleblower Protection Act, by threatening to remove him from his position as Commander,
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159th Fighter Wing, Iouisiana Air National Guard in response to a protected communication,
was SUBSTANTIATED.

o The preponderance of the evidence, to include Brig Gen Veillon’s own testimony,
confirmed that his actions in this instance amounted to reprisal.

'ALLEGATION 4. That Brig Gen Joseph B. Veillon made false official statements on

.an AF Form 707A, Field Grade Officer Performance Report, for the complainant’s reporting

period of Dec 04 to Aug 05, when he falsified both the contents of and sighature of the rating
official on that report, in violation of Louisiana Revised Statutes, Title 29, section 207, False

Official Statements, was SUBSTANTIATED.

s A final assessment of testimony of individuals interviewed in siapport of this allegation
along with a detailed review of supporting documentation indicates Brig Gen Veillon not
only-intentionally falsified a performance report for Col } for the period
ending in Aug 05 and falsely signed Brig Gen (ret) deGeneres’ name on the repott, but

di ith the intent of deceiving others by entering this report of pérformance into Col

B ofricial personnel records that, in a significant way, did not reflect actual

performance for the period involved, As a result, it is reasonable to consider Brig Gen

Veillon’s actions concerning Col performance report as an unjustified

adverse personnel action against Col § o '

- ALLEGATION 5 that Brig Gen Joseph B, Veillon diréct_ed subordinate members to
modify Louisiana Air National Guard Drug Abuse Testing Program procedures, in violation of
AFI 44-120, Drug Abuse Testing Program, 1 Jul 00, and National Guard Drug Testing Policy,

was SUBSTANTIATED.

e The preponderance of evidence indicated Brig Gen Veillon directed AGR members 1ot .
be tested, in violation of NGB policy at the time.

ALLEGATION 6 that Brig Gen Joseph B. Veillon directed subordinate members not to
submit casualty reports and/or required portions of casualty reports for deceased members of the
Louisiana Air National Guard, in violation of AFI 36-3002, Casualty Services, 25 Jul 05, was

_ SUBSTANTIATED.

e The preponderance of the evidence indicated that Brig Gen Veillon’s guidance to his’
subordinates to exclude explicit details and/or certain information in casualty reports as
presctibed by AFI 36-3002 was in violation of that instruction, '

ALLEGATION 7, that Brig Gen Joseph B. Veillon persona}iy directed assignment of
individuals to unit manning positions within the Louisiana Air National Guatd in violation of
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ANGI 36 2101 Assignments within the Air National Guard, 11 Jun 04, and AFI 51-604,
Appomﬂnem to and Assumption of Command, 4 Apr 06, was SUBSTANTIATED.

e The preponderance of evidence, indicated Brig Gen Veillon wrongfuliy duected the
. personnel actions to include the double billsting of technicians and commanders, the
‘existence of an overgrade assignment that had expired in 2003, and the assignment of a
major as a commander of a unit in which there was an individual of higher grade and

rank assigned to the unit.

ALLEGATION 8, that Brig Gen Joseph B. Veillon abused his authority as defined by
ARI 90-301, Inspector General Complaints Resolution, 15 May 08, by wrongfully disapproving
and/or refusing to forward for approval to MG Bennett Landreneau, The Adjutant General, an
award recommendation for a subordinate member, was SUBSTANTIATED,

¢ The preponderance of evidence relative to this allegatton indicated Brig Gen Veillon’s
actions to be arbitrary and capricious and not based on factors relevant to the award of a -

military decoration.

ALLEGATION 9 that Brig Gen Joseph B: Veillon abused his authority as defined by
AT 90-301, Inspector General Complaints Resolution, 15 May 08, by wrongfully directing
inclusion of a subordinate member on a list of members of the Louisiana Air National Guard

_selected for non-retention, in violation of ANGI 36-2606, Selective Retention of Air Natzonal

Guard Oﬁ" Gcer and Enlisted Personnel, 26 Feb 97, was SUBSTANTIATED

o The preponderance of the evidence indicated that Br1g Gen Veilion's actions in this
matter were motivated by retnbutlon and were arbitrary and capricious.

_ ALLEGATION 10 that Brig Gen Joseph B. Veillon reprised against the complainant, in
violation of 10 United States Code, Section 1034 (10 U.S.C. 1034), Military Whistleblower .
Protection Act, by removing him from his position as the — of the
Louisiana Air National Guard and assigning him to non-flying duties in response to multlple
protected commumcatlons, was SUBSTANTIATED.

¢ The preponderance of evidence 1ndicated Brig Gen Veillon directed adverse personnel
© actions against the complamant because of the complainant’s prior protected
communications concerning another officer in the Louisiana Adr Natlonal Guard, an act

of reprisal.
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T G 15, USAT
Deputy Director .
Directorate of Senior Official Inquiries

I have reviewed this Report of Investigation and the accompanying legal review andI
concur with their findings. S

MARC E. ROGERS
Licutenant General, USAF
The Inspéctor General
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